
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 
9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org  

DIRECTORS 
 Danny Johnson, President 

Dan Hankemeier, Vice President 
Emery Ross 

Russell Warren 
James Sult 

 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
NOTE SPECIAL MEETING LOCATION 

Don Pedro High School, Multipurpose Room 
3090 Merced Falls Rd 
LaGrange, CA 95329 

 
July 18th, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Mission Statement:  The Lake Don Pedro CSD is dedicated to providing our customers with ample 
quantities of high quality water meeting all standards, in a fiscally responsible manner.   

 
AGENDA 

1.   CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance:  
 
2.   PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board that is NOT ON THE AGENDA.  
A maximum of three minutes is allowed each person and a maximum of 20 minutes per topic. Any person wishing to address the 
Board on an item ON THE AGENDA will be given the opportunity at that time.  Speakers are encouraged to consult District 
Management or Directors prior to agenda preparation regarding any District matters, as no action will be taken on non-agenda 
issues.  

 
 3.  PRESENTATION ONLY:  
 a. Presiding Officer’s Report 
 b.  General Manager’s Report: Peter J. Kampa 
 c.  Chief Plant Operator’s Report: R. Gilgo 

4.   APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one 
motion or considered separately as determined appropriate by the President 
a. Read and file the June 2016 Treasurer’s Report 
b. Approval of the Minutes – Finance Committee Meeting of June 20, 2016 and Regular Board 

Meeting June 20, 2016 
 

5.   DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS:  
a. Discussion and Action Regarding the District Organizational Chart, Personnel 

Responsibilities and Position Requirements  
b. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Revised Policy on Employee Benefits including 

Medical, Dental and Vision and Eligibility Therefore 
c. Adoption of a Resolution Approving Revisions to Personnel Policies Regarding Work 

Hours and Schedules, Overtime Pay, Standby Duty, Meals and Rest Periods, Salary and 
Merit Reviews, Use of Timeclocks, Cell Phones, Attendance and District Vehicles 

  

Page 1

http://www.ldpcsd.org/


5.   DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS, CON’T: 

d. Review of 2015 Proposition 84Integrated Regional Water Management Implementation 
Grant from the Department of Water Resources, and Report on the Process and 
Schedule for Implementation of: 
i. Grant Agreement Administration 
ii. Emergency Groundwater Well Project 
iii. Regional Water Use Efficiency Project 
iv. Water Service Line Replacement Project   

e. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a New Policy on District Financial Reserves 
   

6.  DIRECTORS COMMENTS: 
Any Director may address the Board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter and       
jurisdiction of the District. Generally, no discussion or comment by other Board members should 
be expected on non-agenda items, except to properly place the matter on a future agenda for 
review, discussion or action as appropriate.  
 

          7.   ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Meeting agendas and written materials supporting agenda items, if produced, can be received 
by the public for free in advance of the meeting by any of the following options: 

• A paper copy viewed at the District office, 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 
during business hours or mailed pursuant to a written request and payment of 
associated mailing fees 

• An electronic copy received by email. Note - a form requesting email delivery of agendas 
and/or meeting materials must be completed a minimum of one week in advance of the 
meeting 

• Viewed on the Board page of the District’s website  
• A limited number of copies of agenda materials will also be available at the meeting  

 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in 
Board Meetings, please contact the LDPCSD Board Secretary at (209) 852-2251 Ext. 2. 
Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure 
accessibility.  

Page 2



3.34

1.49 1.37

3.54

5.22

8.34

6.02 5.86
5.64

7.52

5.97

13.05

10.54%

4.68% 4.25%

13.10%

26.33%

34.88%

31.53%

27.61%

29.59% 29.88%

21.87%

24.30%

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

%
 U

n
ac

co
u

n
te

d
  W

at
er

Loss Report June 2016

System Loss, % System Loss, AF

Page 3



 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 
General Manager’s Report  
July 18, 2016 
 

1 Report Overview 

I am pleased to present this report of the management activities for the period of June 20 through July 
18, 2016.  This report summarizes the activities of management which both drive the efforts of District 
staff on a daily basis, but also populates items on the Board’s agenda.  A detailed quarterly Strategic 
Plan Update Report will be provided in August 2016.  
 
Included with this report are also leak reports covering recent months for both the raw and treated 
water systems.  A vehicle maintenance program memo is also included wherein the vehicle 
responsibilities have been developed and delegated to the Operations Supervisor for full 
implementation.    
 
The majority of the management efforts throughout this period was contained within budget 
development and implementation, completing the well project administration as well as preparing the 
reports and items for this meeting agenda.   

 

2 Management and Administration 

Communications  
• During public comment for the past year we have heard over and over how the cost of a 

District Controller would be $30,000 to $50,000.  I have attached a page from the recent CSDA 
salary survey report, that evaluates the salary of controllers in special districts in the Sierra and 
all other regions of the state, by budget amount, number of employees and district type.  You 
will see that the cost of a controller is much higher than presented to the Board.  One could 
say that we can find a recent college grad and pay them less, but after full training and several 
years with the CSD, their salary will need to be close to the amount presented in the report, 
or we could be a revolving training door for entry level controllers.  Staff is not recommending 
the hiring of a controller at this time.   

• The new district website is fully operational and is being enhanced by the day with the addition 
of file archives and miscellaneous relevant information about the District.   

• On the website topic, a director has asked for water quality data to be presented on the District 
website, and to date staff has chosen to make simple statements regarding water supply 
quality as meeting all state standards, rather than posting very difficult to read and understand 
testing results.  The sampling of the wells does reveal levels of iron, manganese and arsenic 
over the detection limit for reporting; but understand that these contaminants are removed 
in the full treatment process.  No mercury or other heavy metals were found in the well water.  

Page 4



Staff recommends posting only the annual water quality report, rather than alarming 
unknowing customers of contaminants that do not exist in the drinking water.   

• Dollar Store – During the last Board meeting the issue came up of the District providing an 
approval for a new Dollar Store to connect to the water system.  We do not approve a 
connection to the system until a property owner submits a service application to the District, 
which the Dollar Store has not.  When a project such as this store is planned, the County in 
which the project is located typically circulates a land development application to the District 
for our review and comment.  In this case, the county is looking to determine “if” the store is 
approved through the planning process, “can” the District provide service.  The short answer 
is that we can provide service, and in the event there was not enough available water supply 
for the store, we would respond accordingly to the county planning department, and the 
county may require that the project work with the District to find a source of water supply, in 
which case we may require that they drill new wells and dedicate them to the District, or some 
other means of generating water.  They are required to connect to the District water system if 
approved by the county.    

• Customer service survey – we continue to receive results to the survey, and will do one last 
effort at the Special Board meeting to receive input, at which time we will call and end to the 
survey, present the final results, and set off to repeat the survey in the future to determine 
customer outreach progress.    

• DWR IRWMP Grant – A significant amount of time was spent negotiating with the state on 
the final project scope of work and budget, presented in this Board packet.            

• Water Supply – After hitting a high elevation of 789.48 on June 13, 2016, the current Lake 
level sits just below 790 feet above sea level.  We expect the lake to once again drop below 
our pumps this fall.   The new groundwater wells will fill the water supply need in the event of 
water drop below minimum pool.   

• Intake pump startup – In June our District Engineer and a mechanical consultant attended 
the startup of the fixed lake pumps.  One pump started and ran well following several glitches, 
but the second pump appears to be at dead short, meaning the motor is dead or the pump is 
frozen, or both.  The second pump does not work at all.  District Engineer Binkley is preparing 
a memo to the Board providing a description of the event and problems, an recommending 
that we replace the entire pump columns, down to 610 feet above sea level, rather than 
replacing the single dead pump.  Although this will be a much more expensive project than 
pump replacement alone, the timing will be right to complete the work this winter, we hope.           

• Groundwater Well Status -  Construction is complete except for final SCADA programming, 
and staff is currently planning a very public ribbon cutting to celebrate the new water supply, 
and invite/thank the state funding agencies.   We are currently planning the press event/ribbon 
cutting on August 12, 2016 or August 15, 2016 before the Board meeting.     

• Ranchito Well – We have not yet been able to schedule the well pump removal to evaluate 
the condition of the well casing and pump.  We expect this project to occur in August.           

Page 5



3 Finance 

• Project Grants and Reimbursements –Please note that we have over $230,000 in approved 
reimbursement requests in to the state, and expect payment any time.  We are currently preparing 
our third and final reimbursement requests to the DWR and State Water Board programs.  A box 
of project files has been delivered to USDA for review and we expect their response soon 
regarding our first reimbursement request.     

4 Infrastructure and Operations 

• System Water losses – The written loss reports for both raw and treated water are included with 
this report.  On the raw water, you will see next month that the leak repair has reduced water 
losses significantly and in treated water we are still hovering around the 30% loss factor, which 
will be seriously reduced following the service line project.        

Page 6



0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE

Ac
re

 F
ee

t P
um

pe
d

Raw Water Loss 2016

Total Water Pumped Influent to Plant ac.ft.

Page 7



0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE

Raw Water Pumped

McClure Wells

Page 8



MEMO 
 
 
 
Subject:  Vehicle Maintenance Program Implementation 
 
Date: July 15, 2016 
 
To:   Randy Gilgo  
 
From:  Peter J. Kampa 
 
Please find attached hereto a comprehensive vehicle maintenance program that 
covers everything from required driver inspections, to maintenance of records 
and completion of repairs.  You are responsible to ensure that the program is 
fully implemented and effective; including development of an annual budget 
for vehicle replacements, repairs and supplies.   
 
As you will see, our employees will be required to perform some routine work 
such as vehicle inspections, documentation and cleaning; while the majority of 
the vehicle maintenance and all of the repairs will be completed by qualified 
mechanics.   
 
Please provide me copies of the vehicle inventory and initial inspection forms 
so that I have a baseline understanding, and keep me informed of any issues or 
problems in program implementation.  Please provide a copy of this program 
and the new District vehicle use policy to the staff, and provide the level of 
training needed.  Please let me know if you want me as part of the initial 
training, and we can schedule.   
 
   

 
LAKE DON PEDRO 
COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 

President 
  Danny Johnson 
 
 
Vice President 
  Dan Hankemeir 
 
 
Directors 
  Emery Ross 
  James Sult 
  Russ Warren 
 
 
General Manager 
   Peter Kampa 
 
 
Office Supervisor 
  Syndie Marchiesiello 
 
 
Operations Supervisor 
   Randy Gilgo 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mailing Address: 
   9751 Merced Falls Rd 
   La Grange, CA  95329 
 
 
Phone:  (209) 852-2331 
FAX:     (209) 852-2261 
 
www.ldpcsd.org 

 

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of July 19th, 2016 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
    
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion 
or considered separately as determined appropriate by the President  

a. Read and file the June 2016 Treasurer’s Report 
b. Approval of the Minutes – Finance Committee Meeting of June 20, 2016 Regular Board 

Meeting June 20, 2016   
 

Recommended Motion 
Staff recommends the following motion: 
 
I move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  
 
Background  
The consent agenda contains the June Treasurer’s Report and two sets of meeting minutes for June 
2016.  If there are any questions or concerns related to these items, please contact staff.   
  

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 
9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org  

DIRECTORS 
 Danny Johnson, President 

Dan Hankemeier, Vice President 
Emery Ross 

Russell Warren 
James Sult 

Regular Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

June 20, 2016, at 1:00 p.m. 
 
1.   CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance:  
 The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District held a regular 
 meeting at 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329.  
  President Johnson called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.   
  Directors present: Johnson, Hankemeier, Sult, Ross, and Warren 
 Also present: IGM P. Kampa   
 Also present: Staff S. Marchesiello 
 
2.   PUBLIC COMMENT:  
  Three public members spoke 
 
 3.  PRESENTATION ONLY:  
 a. Presiding Officer’s Report 
  None given at this time 
 
 b.  General Manager’s Report: Peter J. Kampa 
  Presented by GM P. Kampa 
 
 c.  Chief Plant Operator’s Report: R. Gilgo 
  Presented by GM P. Kampa 

4.   APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one 
motion or considered separately as determined appropriate by the President 
a. Read and file the May 2016 Treasurer’s Report 
b. Approval of the Minutes – Regular Board Meeting May 16, 2016 
c. Authorize the General Manager to Cast Votes for CSDA 2016 Board Elections 

 
Motion: To approve the consent calendar 
Votes: Carried 5-0 
First: Hankemeier   Second: Ross 
Ayes: Hankemeier, Ross, Sult, Warren, and Johnson 
 Nays: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 21

http://www.ldpcsd.org/


OPEN PUBLIC HEARING: 1:49 p.m. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING: A Notice of Public Hearing has been published and hearing to be held 
for the purpose of receiving public input and comment as required for the following revenue 
collection and budget related items.  At the conclusion of the Public Hearing, the Board will 
consider adoption of Resolutions approving the various actions. 
a. Adoption of a Resolution Approving and Directing the Placement of the Availability Billing and 

Delinquent Account Balances on the Mariposa and Tuolumne County 2016-2017 Tax Rolls for 
collection 
 

  Motion: To approve item 5a approving adoption of resolution approving and directing 
  the placement of availability billing and delinquent account balances on the Mariposa 
  and Tuolumne County 2016-17 tax rolls for collection 
  Votes: Carried 5-0 
  First: Hankemeier   Second: Warren 
  Ayes: Hankemeier, Warren, Ross, Sult, and Johnson 
   Nays: None 
 

b. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Appropriations Limit (Gann Limit) for the District’s 
2016/17 Fiscal Year Expenditures 

  No action taken. Information item only 
 

c. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the District 2016-17 Fiscal Year Salary Schedule 
 

  Motion: To approve the Resolution approving the district 2016-17 fiscal year salary 
  salary schedule as written. No merit increases until the board has something to base 
  the criteria on. 
  Votes: Carried 4-1 
  First: Johnson   Second: Sult 
  Ayes: Johnson, Sult, Warren, and Ross 
   Nays: Hankemeier 
 

d. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the District 2016-17 Fiscal Year budget 
 
 Motion: To approve resolution approving the district 2016-17 year budget 
 Votes: Carried 5-0 
 First: Hankemeier   Second: Warren 
 Ayes: Hankemeier, Warren, Ross, Sult, and Johnson 
  Nays: None 
 
 CLOSED PUBLIC HEARING: 2:51 p.m. 
 
 
 

 

Page 22



6.   DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS:  
a. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Revised Policy on Employee Insurance Benefits 
b. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Revised Policy on Eligibility for Employee Benefits 
c. Discussion and Action Regarding the District Organizational Chart, Personnel 

Responsibilities and Position Requirements  
Point of Order by Director Ross to postpone items 6 a, b, &c until July meeting 
and no hiring of additional employees 
Consensus of the Board agreed 
   

7.  DIRECTORS COMMENTS: 
Director Warren – Commented that he thought the district should have a community meeting. 
 

          8.   ADJOURNMENT: 2:52 p.m. 

  Respectfully submitted by,  

 
  S. Marchesiello 
  Board Secretary   

 
 

Page 23



 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 
9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org  

Committee Members 
 Dan Hankemeier 

Russell Warren 
 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

June 20, 2016, at 10:00 p.m. 
 The Finance Committee of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District held 
 a finance Committee meeting at 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329.  
 at 10:00 p.m.   
 Directors present: Hankemeier, and Warren 
  Also present: IGM P. Kampa   
 Also present: Staff S. Marchesiello 

 
 
1. Review of the draft Budget for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 
 
 The finance committee and the GM met. The items discussed were, the budget and 
 performance for the last several years, connection and reconnection fees, retiree health 
 benefits, operating expense, expected to receive reimbursements at the beginning of the 
 new fiscal year, cost of $721,287 for the raw water line replacement will not come from our 
 customers, service line replacement will be bid out, capital improvement projects. 
 
 The committee agreed to recommend to the Board of Directors to approve the 2016-/2017 
 budget. 
 

 
          2.     ADJOURNMENT: 12:03 p.m. 
 
   Respectfully submitted by,  
 
   S. Marchesiello 
   Board Secretary   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 Page 24

http://www.ldpcsd.org/


Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of July 18th, 2016 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
    
5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  

a. Discussion and Action Regarding the District Organizational Chart, Personnel Responsibilities 
and Position Requirements 

 
 

Recommended Motion 
Staff recommends the following motion: 
 
I move to authorize and direct staff to prepare a policy that further defines the General 
Manager’s role and responsibility as it relates to the development and amendment of district 
organizational charts and job descriptions, and prepare a revised 2016/17 salary chart for 
Board consideration.   
 
Background  
Staff will provide a presentation during the meeting covering the current organizational chart and 
various district employment positions and responsibilities.  Management has determined that one of 
the major impediments to the District in advancing its goals and objectives is a lack of understanding 
of the myriad of responsibilities of operating and maintaining a water treatment and distribution 
system.  The District has historically hired employees to operate and supervise the plant and water 
system; while at the same time assuming responsibilities for District management that were far more 
complex than understood by the Board and general public.   
 
California Government Code 61051 states: 
The general manager shall be responsible for all of the following: 

(a) The implementation of the policies established by the board of directors for the operation of the 
district. 

(b) The appointment, supervision, discipline, and dismissal of the district’s employees, consistent 
with the employee relations system established by the board of directors. 

(c) The supervision of the district’s facilities and services. 
(d) The supervision of the district’s finances. 

 
For the District to be successful, the General Manager must be delegated the responsibility to 
assemble the team of qualified persons necessary to conduct the services efficiently, safely and in 
compliance with all laws and permits.  The General Manager develops the budget for this operation, 
and proposes fees and charges necessary to accumulate the revenue necessary to fund the staff and 
operations.  Considering this, the GM should have the authority within the Board adopted budget to 
arrange staff and positions as necessary to achieve the desired results.   
 
Currently, the development of the organizational chart, positions and job descriptions has been a 
function of the Board, which leaves the GM at a disadvantage in not being able to select the 
appropriate team; or mix of skills and abilities.  There is currently no mid-management leaving the 

Page 25



responsibility of all staff supervision and direction on the GM, which nearly eliminates management 
time.   
 
Staff recommends that the GM be given the authority to develop the positions necessary to most 
effectively carry out the District’s mission; within the Board established budget limits.  Currently, 
management is strongly considering the need for an Operations Manager and Administrative 
Services Manager position within the District, and requests that the Board take action to authorize the 
GM to further define and evaluate this recommendation through the development of Board policies.   

Page 26



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of July 18th, 2016 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
    
5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  

b. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Revised Policy on Employee Benefits including Medical, 
Dental and Vision and Eligibility Therefore 

 
 

Recommended Motion 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution 2016-XX, a Resolution Approving a Revised Policy on Employee 
Benefits including Medical, Dental and Vision and Eligibility Therefore 
 
Background  
State and/or federal laws govern some of the benefits provided to employees, while others are 
determined by the LDPCSD Board specifically or governed by a benefit provider. Should there be a 
discrepancy between the contents of the Board’s policy in the Personnel Handbook and a provision of 
an applicable law, benefit plan or contract, then the law, plan document, or contract will prevail. 
All employees should receive information regarding benefits plans during their initial employee 
orientation. This information includes summary plan descriptions, which are detailed benefit 
documents. Employees having questions regarding benefit matters should speak with their supervisor 
or the General Manager.  However, not all employees of the District were made clearly aware of the 
benefits provided. 
LDPCSD reserves the right to change, suspend or eliminate any benefit at its sole discretion when 
conditions warrant and within the confines of applicable law.  Benefit changes can only be made by 
Resolution of the Board of Directors and documented in new or revised policy documents.  
Employees will receive a full copy of a new or revised Personnel Handbook and shall sign 
acknowledging its receipt.  Employees will be notified of any changes in employee benefit programs 
at meetings or through memos and will receive a certified copy of any revised policies. 
LDPCSD has developed a broad, comprehensive set of employee benefit programs to supplement 
our employee’s regular wages, for the purpose of maintaining a healthy and efficient workforce; and 
to attract and retain highly productive employees. We are continually investigating new opportunities 
to improve our present programs as needs arise and budgets permit. 
The most recent version of the District’s personnel policy, or personnel handbook, was adopted by 
the Board on February 18, 2014 by means of Resolution 2014-3.  The new personnel handbook 
contained many references to an external set of personnel policies that were originally adopted in 
1996, and then amended over the years, occasionally with very little documentation other than 
meeting minutes.  Throughout the past decade there has been numerous occasions where the terms 
of the external policies were in conflict with the new personnel policy, and made interpretation of the 
personnel policies difficult for management, the Board and employees.  It seemed as though each 
reader had their own interpretation of the terms and conditions of the policies.  

Page 27



Beginning in 2004 and primarily due to rapidly increasing cost to the District, the Board of Directors 
began reviewing the insurance benefits provided to employees. At the time, the District paid the cost 
of medical insurance on behalf of the employee at 100%, and 90% for the spouse.  The attached 
history of insurance benefits document was prepared by staff through review of Board meeting 
agendas, minutes, staff reports and resolutions.  The report shows that the Board had the clear intent 
in 2005 to cap the cost of medical insurance payments on behalf of employees.  The record also 
shows that the Board considered whether or not to continue providing payment of medical insurance 
costs for retired employees.  
This particular point, Retiree Medical insurance, became the point of controversy and debate for 
many years after 2005, and the record shows that the Board considered this topic in committee and 
at the Board as different staff were hired.  The District also moved from the CalPERS medical 
program to the ACWA medical program, which allows more flexibility with regard to the various 
benefits the District can provide.  From 2005 through 2014 when the new Personnel Handbook was 
adopted, the District continued to pay the same amount toward employee medical insurance and 
never really had to address the issue of Retiree Medical head-on until the 2015 actuarial valuation, as 
required by auditing standards GASB 45, included the cost to the District of providing retiree medical 
insurance to the District’s two newest employees.   
The new employees had to sign a document acknowledging receipt of the personnel handbook, but in 
reality, it is doubtful that they were specifically informed whether or not they were eligible for retiree 
medical insurance.  The personnel handbook as written and approved was simply confusing with 
regard to these benefits, and their applicability to these two employees, we will have a third party firm 
conduct an independent evaluation to determine whether these employees receive medical insurance 
paid in retirement, should they continue with the District to that point.   
When it comes to the future, a medical insurance policy amendment is needed to clarify the Board’s 
intent to not continue to pay the full amount of medical benefits for retirees in the future.  The 
attached revised policy language clarifies this matter and reduced the District’s medical insurance 
payments on behalf of retirees, for employees hired after January 1, 2016.  There have been no 
employees hired since January 1, 2016.   
The laws may require that the District pay a minimum amount to allow employees hired post January 
1, 2016 to receive the District medical insurance in retirement.  The retiree is then responsible for the 
difference between the District’s minimum contribution, and the then current total insurance costs.  
For CalPERS, the minimum is approximately $130 per month. If the minimum payment allowed is 
zero, then the District will pay nothing and the newly hired employee will pay the total cost to continue 
their medical benefits on retirement.  It is likely further Board action may be required by ACWA, our 
medical insurance administrator, to make the change to create a new tier of employees who do not 
receive the same retiree medical benefits.       
The attached Resolution 2016-XX was drafted to rescind the referenced personnel policies adopted 
in 2014, and the old external personnel policies, replacing them with the new policy language titled as 
follows and attached hereto: 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Lake Don Pedro CSD 
Existing Personnel Policies 

Amended Insurance Provisions 
July 18, 2016 

 
The amended insurance policy document was developed using the language existing in our 2014 
personnel handbook, with proposed deleted language shown in crossed out text and added language 
shown in underlined text. The language from the old policies that were previously externally 

Page 28



referenced are now included, in part, in the added policy language.  The external policies are shown 
as deleted at the end of the Personnel Policy Sections to be Amended document.   
If the Resolution approving the policy amendments is approved, the deleted language will be 
removed and the underlined language added to each section.  In addition, the new policy manual 
format will list each major policy separately, with each policy listing its adoption date and the date of 
each of its future amendments.  All of the separate personnel policy sections will then be bound into a 
handbook, and as future policy amendments are made, the old policy will be removed, and new policy 
added into policy binders.   
 

Page 29



EXHIBIT A 
 

Lake Don Pedro CSD 
Existing Personnel Policies 

Amended Insurance Provisions 
July 18, 2016 

 
 

Section 3.9 Insurance 
 
The District provides certain health and welfare benefits to full time employees as described 
herein. Your contribution will be paid through payroll deductions with a signed authorization while 
employed, and paid by retired employees directly to the insurance carrier/administrator.  At your 
option you may add your eligible dependents to certain areas of this benefit.  See Policy and 
Procedures Manual Policy number 2055 Health and Welfare Benefits for details. 
 
Coverage starts the first day of the month following completion of thirty (30) days of continuous 
employment.  A full summary plan description is available from the General Manager. 
 
Eligibility 
 
Regular, full time positions of the District are eligible for medical, dental and vision insurance, as 
well as retirement benefits.  Upon completion of one (1) months of employment, all eligible full-
time employees may be eligible for coverage by the District's group medical and hospitalization 
plan.  Full time employees working at least 1560 hours in a calendar year shall be eligible for 
insurance benefits after completing 1000 hours (estimated 6 months) of continuous employment. 
 
See Policy and Procedure Manual, Policy number 2050, Eligibility for Benefits.  
 
MEDICAL INSURANCE is provided for eligible employees and retired employees.  The District 
currently covers 100% of the employee’s monthly premium and 90% of the employee’s dependent 
monthly premium; Directors are responsible for 100% of their monthly premium. 
 
Note: Full time employees hired on or before 09/07/2005  will be grand-fathered to maintain the 
medical coverage offered as of XXXX date after his/her retirement, but cannot add any additional 
persons that were not already covered on their medical coverage at the time of retirement.  For 
full details see Grandfathered Documents for those employees involved. 
Medical Insurance - General 

Upon completion of one (1) month of employment, regular, full time employees become eligible 
for coverage by the District’s group medical and hospitalization insurance plan.     

Medical Insurance While Employed – Medical insurance is provided for eligible employees.  
The scope of coverage, the specific providers, and the payment of premiums may be subject to 
review and revision by the Board of Directors.  The District currently covers 100% of the 
employee’s monthly insurance premium and 90% of the employee’s dependent monthly 
premium; Directors are responsible for 100% of their monthly premium. 

Medical Insurance Upon Retirement: 

Page 30



Full time employees hired on or before January 1, 2016 – The District shall pay the 
cost of medical insurance coverage at the level of payment being offered as of the date of 
his/her retirement, but cannot add any additional persons to the insurance policy that were not 
already covered on their medical coverage at the time of retirement.  

Full time employees hired after January 1, 2016 – The District shall pay the minimum 
cost of medical insurance as required by applicable law, to maintain coverage for the retired 
employee only.  If the retired employee chooses to maintain the medical insurance provided by 
the District in retirement, he/she shall be responsible for the cost of the insurance premium, less 
the minimum payment mount required to be paid by the District.    

 
DENTAL INSURANCE is provided with the District covering 100% of the premium for the 
employee and dependants.  Directors are responsible for 100% of their coverage. 
 
VISION CARE. Upon presentation of valid receipts for eye examinations and/or eyewear 
purchases, the District will provide a maximum benefit of $100.00 per family member per calendar 
year. 
 
RETIREMENT is provided through the Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 2% @ 
60.  Employee pays the 7% member contribution.  To be eligible for service retirement, a member 
must be at least 50 years old and have five years of CalPERS credited service.  If you become a 
member on or after January 1, 2013, you must be age 52 with five years of credited service. 
 
FLEXPLAN-The District provides an incentive program to encourage employees who are thinking 
about opting out of the District’s Medical and Dental Insurance plan by paying them at a rate of 
20% of the associated healthcare costs.  For medical only, the maximum an employee with a 
family could collect in lieu of having Medical coverage will be based on 20% of the current cost 
associated with Anthem CACare HMO Family Plan.  Flex plan payments to employees are 
conducted on the second pay day of each month. 
 

 

 

  

Page 31



EXHIBIT A 

PERSONNEL POLICY TO BE DELETED (RESCINDED) 

POLICY TITLE: Eligibility for Employee Benefits 

POLICY NUMBER: 2050 
ADOPTED: 
 

2050.10  Full time employees working at least 1560 hours in a calendar year shall be eligible for 
all medical, dental and vision insurance benefits after completing 1000 hours (estimated 6 months) of 
continuous employment.  

2050.20 Employees are eligible to receive sick, vacation, Holiday and Family Medical Leave in 
accordance with District policies specific to each of these other leaves.   

 

Page 32



 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
TO BE DELETED (RESCINDED) 

 

 
 

POLICY TITLE: Benefits Package for Hourly 

Associates POLICY NUMBER: 2055 

ADOPTED: February 22, 2005 

 MEDICAL INSURANCE is provided through the California Public 
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) for employees and retired 
employees in accordance with Policy 2050 Eligibility for Employee 
Benefits and Policy 4035 Directors' Health Insurance. The District 
currently covers 100% of the employee's coverage and 90% of 
dependent coverage. Directors are responsible for 100% of their 
coverage. The amount will be capped, for current employees, at the 
January 2005 (exhibit A) rates and will be adjusted by consumer price 
index (CPI) each January, Employees hired after January 2005 will have 
the amount of benefits capped at the January 2005 Kaiser rate. Increases 
over the CPI will be the responsibility of the employees and retired 
employees receiving health coverage. 

 
 DENTAL INSURANCE is provided for with the District covering 100% of 

the premium for the employee and dependents. Directors are 
responsible for 100% of their coverage. 

 
 VISION CARE upon presentation of valid receipts for eye examinations 

and/or eyewear purchases the District will provide a maximum benefit of 
$100.00 per family member per calendar year. 

 
 DISABILITY INSURANCE is provided through the state of California 

Employment Development Department (EDD). Coverage is solely the 
responsibility of the employee. Current rate is 1.18% to a maximum 
annual amount of $812. 18. 

 
 RETIREMENT is provided through the Public Employees Retirement 

System {CalPERS), 2% @ 60, single highest year, with the employee 
paying the 7% member contribution. 

 
 SOCIAL SECURITY The District employees participate in Social 

Security paying the mandatory contribution rate of 6. 2%, The 
District matches the contribution at the same rate. 

 
 MEDICARE The District employees participate in Medicare paying the 
mandatory contribution rate of 1.45%. The District matches the 
contribution at the same rate. Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING 
REVISED PERSONNEL POLICIES REGARDING EMPLOYEE INSURANCE 

INCLUDING MEDICAL, DENTAL, VISION AND ELIGIBILITY THEREFORE  
 

The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District does 
hereby find and declare as follows: 

 

WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (“District”) is a 
California community services district formed and existing under the provisions of the 
California Community Services District Law, codified at Government Code §§ 61000-
61144, and all acts and laws amendatory thereof or supplementary thereto, and possessing 
all the powers thereof; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors adopts policies to guide the actions of 
management and the District in the conduct of the day to day operations of District 
management and administration; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that certain policies are in need of update and 

amendment to ensure the efficient provision of services and effective management of District 
affairs; and 

 
WHEREAS, draft policy amendments have been prepared and are attached hereto as 

Exhibit A for consideration and adoption. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don 

Pedro Community Services District that the General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
update the District personnel policies with a certified copy of the approved policies contained in 
Exhibit A as attached hereto.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the policies contained in 

Exhibit A and shown as deleted are hereby rescinded.  
 
 
WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of 

the  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District on July 18, 2016, by the following 
vote: 

  

 AYES:  

 

 NOES:  

  

Page 74



 ABSENT:  

 

 ABSTAIN: 

  

      
 _________________________________________ 

       Danny Johnson, President, Board of Directors 

  

 ATTEST: 

  

  

 ______________________________ 

 Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary 

  

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

 

 STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 

 COUNTY OF MARIPOSA ) 

  

  I, Syndie Marchesiello, the duly appointed and Secretary of the Board of Directors of the 
Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly 
passed and adopted at a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community 
Services District, duly called and held at _____________________________, La Grange, CA 95239, on 
July 18, 2016. 

  

 DATED: July 18, 2016. 

  

  

  

 ______________________________ 

Page 75



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of July 18th, 2016 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
    
5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  

c. Adoption of a Resolution Approving Revisions to Personnel Policies Regarding Work Hours and 
Schedules, Overtime Pay, Strandby Duty, Meals and Rest Periods, Salary and Merit Reviews, 
Use of Timeclocks, Cell Phones, Attendance and District Vehicles 

 
 

Recommended Motion 
Staff recommends the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution 2016-XX, a Resolution Approving Revisions to Personnel Policies 
Regarding Work Hours and Schedules, Overtime Pay, Strandby Duty, Meals and Rest Periods, 
Salary and Merit Reviews, Use of Timeclocks, Cell Phones, Attendance and District Vehicles 
 
Background  
The most recent version of the District’s personnel policy, or personnel handbook, was adopted by 
the Board on February 18, 2014 by means of Resolution 2014-3.  The new personnel handbook 
contained many references to an external set of personnel policies that were originally adopted in 
1996, with some being amended over the years.  Throughout the past two years there has been 
numerous occasions where the terms of the external policies were either in conflict with the new 
policy, and were not readily available and accessible in making day to day decisions.  Also, since the 
new personnel handbook was authored by a consultant with little experience in public agency 
policies, and no experience in public utility work, the new policy language was in many cases vague, 
difficult to interpret an in conflict from section to section.   
 
It has been staff’s intent and directed by the strategic plan to update and revise the personnel 
policies.  The attached Resolution 2016-XX was drafted to rescind the referenced old personnel 
policies, replacing them with the new policy language titled Personnel Policy Sections to be 
Amended, attached hereto.  The attached policy document was developed including selected 
sections taken directly from our 2014 personnel handbook, with proposed deleted language shown in 
crossed out text and added language shown in underlined text. The language from the old policies 
that were previously externally referenced are now included in part in the added policy language.  The 
external policies are shown as deleted at the end of the Personnel Policy Sections to be Amended 
document.   
 
The policy amendments are relatively self-explanatory with the majority being proposed in support of 
the Board’s directives in the strategic plan, including: 

• Develop up to date policies, organizational procedures and a supportive administrative 
structure 

• Improve public image of the District through a variety of means 
• Develop a system maintenance plan and strategy 
• Update the District organizational chart, job descriptions and job requirements 
• Update the performance evaluation process for all positions 

Page 76



 
Many of the proposed changes are intended to support a revised set of job descriptions and position 
responsibilities and performance expectations.  The changes are intended to clearly articulate 
management’s expectations and assign responsibility for completion of important tasks.   
 
If the Resolution approving the policy amendments is approved, the deleted language will be 
removed and the underlined language added to each section.  In addition, the new policy manual 
format will list each major policy separately, with each policy listing its adoption date and the date of 
each of its future amendments.  All of the separate personnel policy sections will then be bound into a 
handbook, and as future policy amendments are made, the old policy will be removed, and new policy 
added into policy binders.   
 
  

Page 77



EXHIBIT A 
PERSONNEL POLICY SECTIONS TO BE AMENDED 

 

SECTION 2 – HOURS AND PAY 
 
Section 2.1 Work Hours and Schedules – Non-Exempt Employees 
 
The established workweek for non-exempt employees at Lake Don Pedro CSD is Monday through 
Sunday, inclusive.   
 
The workday is a twenty-four (24) hour period.  Our workday begins at 12:00 a.m. and ends at 
11:59 p.m.  
The actual work hours and schedule for each employee will be established by the employee’s 
supervisor based on the service needs of the District. Unless instructed differently by your 
supervisor, you are to report to work at the previously agreed upon time and work location.    
 
You will be paid for all hours worked.  Pay for time worked will be computed from the time you 
begin your work day until the end of your work day. 
 
Section 2.2 Over-time Pay – Non-Exempt Employees 
 
You will be paid one-and-one-half (1-½) times your regular rate of pay for all time worked in excess 
of forty (40) hours in any one (1) workweek.   
 
You will be paid double your regular rate of pay for all time work in excess of twelve (12) hours in 
a single work day. 
 
You must have prior approval before working any non-emergency overtime from the General 
Manager or his/her designee.    
 
 
Section 2.3  Standby Duty (On-Call Pay) 
 
Answering and responding to afterhours emergency calls for utility repair and customer service is 
an essential job function of all operations staff. The employee who is “on-call” will be responsible 
to receive and respond to all calls for emergency service during all non-working hours, typically 
evenings and weekends, during an assigned seven-day period. The Operations Manager shall 
assign any required duties, such as treatment plant operation, needed to occur during the non-
work hours.  during the weekend will be paid for stand-by time in the amount of 2 hours for 
Saturday and 2 hours for SundayFour hours’ compensation shall be paid at the overtime rate as 
a lump-sum stipend for the responsibility of being prepared and responding to afterhours calls by 
remaining within response time of the District boundaries and constantly fit for work duty for the 
seven day on-call period. .  This employee will also be compensated one-quarter hour for every 
four alarms answered at the overtime rate; ie. 1-4 alarms = 15 minutes, 5-8 alarms = 30 minutes, 
etc).  If this the on-call employee must is assigned to report to work or responds to the location of 
an emergency call, he/she will document the reason for having to work and will be paid for the 
time worked with a minimum of at least 1 hour at the overtime rate.  
 

Page 78



A schedule shall be maintained by the General Manager and the Operations Supervisor Manager 
whereby operations employees shall be assigned, on a rotational basis, to be "on-call" on 
weekends, holidays, and other times not considered regular hours of work for District employees.  
 
When an employee is on-call, he/she shall be provided a pager and/or District issued cell phone.  
Said pager and/or cell phone shall be kept in the employee's possession during the entire on-call 
period, and all calls received shall be acknowledged and responded to as required.. If the on-call 
employee is in a location where cellular service is unavailable or unreliable, said employee shall 
notify the Operations Manager and afterhours answering service and provide an equally reliable, 
adequate means of contact for the entire period out of range. All afterhours calls from the 
answering service shall be answered as quickly as possible and missed calls/voicemail calls 
returned immediately.  Notification of an emergency repair (a repair that cannot wait to be 
conducted during normal business hours) shall be given to the GM Operations Manager for 
approval either by telephone or in person generally by the Operations Supervisor if available. 
 
When an employee is on-call, he/she shall be free to utilize his/her time as desired, but must remain 
fit for duty and be able to respond within 60 minutes to the District facility if called in. The District on-
call vehicle is to be used for travel to and from the on-call operator’s home so long as located within 
the District water service area, and District facilities.  Incidental personal use of the District vehicle is 
allowed when on-call and responding to a call, such as stopping at the store on the way to or from a 
District facility.    
 
 
Section 2.4 Meal and Rest Periods – Non-Exempt Employees 
 
You will be allowedare required a thirty (30) minute unpaid duty-free meal period near the middle 
of the workday unless an alternate schedule has been approved or directed in advance by your 
supervisor.  The District or Supervisor will schedule such meal periods and may post the schedule.  
 
You will be allowed a fifteen (15) minute paid rest period as close as practicable to the mid-point 
of any continuous four (4) hour work period. 
 
Lactation 
 
If you desire to express breast milk for your infant child during the workday, upon request, you 
will be granted a reasonable amount of rest period time, to run concurrently, if possible, with break 
time already provided.    If you desire such rest period time and a private location for expressing 
milk, you should contact your Supervisor who will assist in accommodating your needs. 
 
Section 2.5 Salary and Merit Reviews 
 
Each job classification has a specific salary range, which is established based determined by 
youron the job description, duties, certifications, skill and level of responsibility for each position 
within the District.   
 
The General Manager has the responsibility to ensure an efficient, safe, competent, well trained 
and highly performing workforce. To accomplish this the General Manager has the authority, 
within established budget limits, to award salary increases for excellent performance in 
accordance with the salary range steps established within your job classification.  The General 
Manager must approve any salary step increases recommended by the supervisor. 
 

Page 79



An employee advancement plan with specific, measurable performance objectives will be 
established for each employee at the frequency determined necessary by the supervisor; at 
minimum annually.  The advancement plan is intended to outline the expectations for increased 
job knowledge, skill, efficiency, certification and proficiency required for continued employment in 
your position.  To be eligible for any increase, it must fall within the appropriate salary range for 
your job classification.  To be considered for a merit salary increase, Your your job performance 
must be documented as excellent and you must have accomplished the objectives detailed in 
your advancement plan.   reviews serve as the basis for your merit increase, if any, and only if 
you have not reached the "top" of your range. 
 
Once an employee has reached the highest step in the salary range for their job classification, 
further merit salary increases can be achieved through promotion to an available position in a 
higher pay and responsibility range.   
 
Section 2.6 Time Clock and Time Cards – Non-Exempt Employees 
 
As a non-exempt employee, you are required to accurately record your hours of work, your meal 
breaks and your holiday, sick and vacation time.   
 
The time clock is located in the Main Office and in the Plant. 
 
All time cards must be properly completed, and you are responsible for your own time card only.  
All non-exempt employees are required to clock in and out as follows: 
 

1. Not more than five (5) minutes prior to the start of the employee’s work shift, but as close 
to the start time as possible. 

2. The beginning and end of meal periods (except drivers and/or driver's helpers, who 
arewhen performing their regularly assigned duties away from the plant or District facility 
at the time of the meal period). 

3. Not more than five (5) minutes after the end of the employee's work shift, but as close to 
the quit time as possible. 

District may utilize a round up/round down rule for timecard purposes.   
 
You are to sign your timecard to attest that the hours recorded are accurate and are the total 
hours that you worked.  You should must not sign any timecard that is inaccurate and notify your 
Supervisor immediately for resolution.  You are not to make any changes on your time card 
without the approval of your Supervisor. Changes include correcting errors in punching, forgetting 
to punch or not getting a required meal or rest period.  You may not knowingly punch anyone 
else's time card or knowingly allow anyone else to punch your time card.  
 

SECTION 5 – YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES AS AN EMPLOYEE 
 
Section 5.15 Cell Phones/Wireless Handheld Device 
 
Lake Don Pedro CSD will not be liable for the loss of personal cell phones or mobile devices at 
the workplace.  The use of cell phones/mobile devices for non-District business is prohibited 
during working hours unless you are on a designated rest or meal period.   You must obtain 
approval from your Supervisor prior to using your cell phone during working hours.  The personal 
cell phone should be turned off and stored away from your work area at all times.    

Page 80



 
You may be provided a District issued cell phone for use when on-call and other assignments.  
District cell phones are not to be used for personal reasons except to notify family of important 
matters related to work schedule, emergencies or for safety purposes.  If you are issued a District 
phone, its safe and proper use and care is an important responsibility of your job.  Misuse or 
careless use of the District cell phone is cause for disciplinary action. The phone must be turned 
over to the next user in a clean, operable condition or its malfunction must be immediately 
reported to the supervisor.    
   
In accordance with California laws, except in the case of an emergency, you are required to use 
a hands-free device when using a cell phone (personal cell phone or District cell phone) while 
operating a motor vehicle. Employees should only use cell phones while driving when it is required 
for District business.  Whenever feasible, you should safely pull off the road to use a cell phone. 
 
Employees are prohibited from texting at any time while operating a vehicle on District business. 
 
Employees under the age of eighteen are prohibited from using a cell phone at any time while 
driving. 
 
Employees are prohibited from using the camera feature on their personal of District cell phones 
or wireless handheld devices for non-business purposes.   
 
Nonexempt employees must have prior approval before using their cell phone or wireless 
handheld device for business purposes after regularly scheduled work hours.    If you do utilize 
your cell phone or wireless handheld device for business after regularly scheduled work hours, 
you must report that work time to your Supervisor immediately. 
 
Section 5.16  Attendance 
 
Regular attendance and punctuality are required and must be maintained.  You are considered 
absent from work any time you are not able to be in attendance for your normally scheduled 
workday and shift; whether an hour or an entire day. If you must be late or absent from work for 
a good reason, for it to be excused a previous arrangement with your Supervisor is required.  If 
this is not possible, you must call your Supervisor no later thanwithin one (1) hour after before the 
scheduled start time of your workday, leaving a voicemail message on their contact phone and 
also calling the answering service if the supervisor cannot be reached personally. Failure to notify 
your supervisor and/or the answering service of your tardiness or absence in accordance with 
these requirements; not having a valid reason for the absence; or not completing a Leave Request 
Form will result in an unexcused absence, which is not eligible for the use of vacation or sick 
leave.  
 
Unexcused absence will not be compensated and the time cannot be “made up” by working past 
the scheduled end of the workday, unless mandated to do so by your supervisor based on 
workload or emergencies. 
 
Always state the reason for your late arrival or absence and your expected date of return or when 
you should be expected to arrive at work. Planned absences require the completion of a Leave 
Request Form signed by your supervisor in advance of the absence.  Leave Request Forms shall 
be completed in arears for all unplanned absences.   
 

Page 81



If you fail to call in or show up for three two consecutive working days you will be considered to 
have voluntarily quit at the close of business on the third second day, unless the reason for your 
absence is accepted by your Supervisor. 
 
 
 
Section 5.17  District Vehicles 
 
The District may provide designated employees with a District vehicle for use during normal 
work hours and when on-call.  Our vehicles are supplied for the sole purpose of use in 
conducting District business.  Other than the General Manager, no personal travel is allowed.  
See Policy and Procedures Manual, Policy number 2290 Use of District Vehicles and 
Equipment. The District on-call vehicle is to be used for travel to and from District facilities and the 
on-call operator’s home so long as the home is located within the District water service area.  
Incidental personal use of the District vehicle (such as a stop for a brief personal errand on the way 
between the business activity and the employee’s home) is allowed when on-call and responding to a 
call.   A District vehicle may also be used for the purpose of going to lunch with the provision that 
an employee is performing duties that require him/her to be away from the office during the 
lunch period. 
 
 
Observe theThe following practices are required of the vehicle operator while driving a District 
vehicle: 

• Seat belts must be worn at all times by the driver and all passengers  
• Smoking is not permitted in a District vehicle at any time 
• Remove any trash from the cab and bed of the truck daily and keep the vehicle clean 

inside and out 
• When hauling or moving equipment, ensure that all material is secured properly 
• Park and lock the vehicle in a secure location and if so equipped, set the alarm when 

leaving it unattended, day or night 
• First-Aid kits and any emergency supplies should be fully stocked at all times 
• No persons other than District employees are to be transported in District vehicles 
• The vehicle operator is required to perform pre-trip vehicle inspections and to 

immediately report any identified malfunctions or needed repairs in accordance with the 
District vehicle maintenance program 

• The Operations Manager is required to coordinate all necessary vehicle maintenance to 
keep the fleet operating in a safe, functional and presentable condition 
 

Lake Don Pedro CSD will stock District vehicles with an adequate supply of parts, tools, 
equipment and supplies.  Each employee must account for the inventory of their vehicle.  Lake 
Don Pedro CSD stocked and supplies, equipment and parts should are only to be used on Lake 
Don Pedro CSD authorized jobs. 
 
The District will be responsible for all necessary repairs and maintenance.  If any repairs are 
needed, you must bring them to the attention of management as soon as possible.   
 
 

Page 82



EXHIBIT A 
POLICY TO BE DELETED 

 
Policy Title:  Use of District Vehicles and Equipment 
Policy Number: 2290 
Adopted:  May 16, 2011 
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District vehicles, facilities, and equipment are to 
be used for District business only. Seat belts must be worn at all times by employees 
driving or riding in District vehicles. 
 
All District vehicles with the exception of the vehicle to be utilized by the assigned 
"On-Call/Duty Operator" in accordance with Policy Title "ON CALL DUTY" 2110, are 
to be locked and safely secured in the District's yard after normal working hours, unless 
extended hours are necessary for repairs or modification to District equipment and/or 
lines. 
 
The District backhoe and its carrier truck may remain on a work site if deemed 
necessary for job completion provided they are locked and secured for the night. When 
feasible, they should be returned to the District's yard. 
 
Any employee assigned a District vehicle may not use the vehicle for personal 
purposes, other than for commuting or limited incidental person use (such as a stop for 
a brief personal errand on the way between a business activity and the employee's 
home). A District vehicle may also be used for the purpose of going to lunch with the 
provision that an employee is performing duties that require him/her to be away from 
the office during the lunch period. The area for such is limited to the Lake Don Pedro 
service area as defined in the Exhibit A map. 

An employee may be assigned the District vehicle to run errands for the District. The 
errands may be to make the Bank Deposit, purchasing Office or Plant supplies as 
needed and specifically requested by the Plant Operations Manager or the Office 
Manager or General Manager. The place for errand running will be the most cost 
effective and efficient area after reviewing the specific needs of the District at the time. 
 
The only exception to personal use restrictions of District vehicles shall apply to the 
Duty Operator. The Duty Operator shall ensure that his/her assigned District vehicle is 
available for immediate response and may operate the vehicle for limited incidental 
personal transportation within District boundaries. However, he/she shall not transport 
any other persons when operating the vehicle for personal use. Any misuse of District 
vehicles or violation of these Rules and Regulations is cause for Disciplinary Action, 
up to and including termination. 
 

Page 83



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING 
REVISIONS TO PERSONNEL POLICIES REGARDING WORK HOURS AND 

SCHEDULES, OVERTIME PAY, STANDBY DUTY, MEALS AND REST PERIODS, 
SALARY AND MERIT REVIEWS, USE OF TIMECLOCKS, CELL PHONES, 

ATTENDANCE AND DISTRICT VEHICLES  
 

The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District does 
hereby find and declare as follows: 

 

WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (“District”) is a 
California community services district formed and existing under the provisions of the 
California Community Services District Law, codified at Government Code §§ 61000-
61144, and all acts and laws amendatory thereof or supplementary thereto, and possessing 
all the powers thereof; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors adopts policies to guide the actions of 
management and the District in the conduct of the day to day operations of District 
management and administration; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that certain policies are in need of update and 

amendment to ensure the efficient provision of services and effective management of District 
affairs; and 

 
WHEREAS, draft policy amendments have been prepared and are attached hereto as 

Exhibit A for consideration and adoption. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don 

Pedro Community Services District that the General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
update the District personnel policies with a certified copy of the approved policies contained in 
Exhibit A as attached hereto.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the policies contained in 

Exhibit A and shown as deleted are hereby rescinded.  
 
WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of 

the  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District on July 18, 2016, by the following 
vote: 

  

 AYES:  

 

 NOES:  

Page 84



  

 ABSENT:  

 

 ABSTAIN: 

  

      
 _________________________________________ 

       Danny Johnson, President, Board of Directors 

  

 ATTEST: 

  

  

 ______________________________ 

 Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary 

  

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

 

 STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 

 COUNTY OF MARIPOSA ) 

  

  I, Syndie Marchesiello, the duly appointed and Secretary of the Board of Directors of the 
Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly 
passed and adopted at a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community 
Services District, duly called and held at _____________________________, La Grange, CA 95239, on 
July 18, 2016. 

  

 DATED: July 18, 2016. 

  

  

  

Page 85



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of July 18th, 2016 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
    
5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  

d. Review of 2015 Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management Implementation Grant 
from the Department of Water Resources, and Report on the Process and Schedule for 
Implementation of:  

i. Grant Agreement Administration 
ii. Emergency Groundwater Well Project 
iii. Regional Water Use Efficiency Project 
iv. Water Service Line Replacement Project 

 
 

Recommended Motion 
This agenda item is intended to provide important information to the Board and public.  No specific 
action is required with this agenda item.   
 
Background  
District Resolution 2015-25 authorized the General Manager to submit an application to the State 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) and to sign a grant agreement with the State if the 
application was successful.  As we have discussed at many recent Board meetings, the state has 
issued a contract to the District for $1,001,547 in grant funding from the 2015 Proposition 84 
Integrated Regional Water Management Implementation Grant program for the three projects listed 
above, and the grant administration activity.  The General Manager has signed the agreement and is 
in the process of meeting the agreement’s standard conditions.   
 
This is an informational agenda item to assist the Board and public in understanding the projects and 
funding agency requirements.  Included with this item is a copy of the DWR grant agreement, final 
project scope of work, and budgets.  Most important to discuss and understand is the next steps in 
the process.  Please remember that all grant payments are made as reimbursements for eligible 
expenses incurred. The eligible expenses are listed in the individual project scopes of work and 
budgets.  Once we incur the expense, on a regular basis such as monthly or every other month, we 
will package all paid invoices and prepare a reimbursement form for state approval; and once 
approved, submit multiple copies of each final reimbursement request.   
 
The preparation of reimbursement requests, tracking of project costs, additional grant administration 
work, preparing the required progress reports and our past expenses in preparation of the grant 
application (approximately $75,000) are reimbursable under the Project 1, Grant Administration line 
items.   
 
All work associated with contracting, engineering, permits, materials and supplies and other direct 
costs for the three projects are reimbursable under the budget for each respective project.  You will 
see that an in-kind or local match amount is included in the budget for each of the projects. The 
individual project specifics are detailed below: 
 

Page 86



Project 2 – Emergency Groundwater Well Project 
 
In the project work scope, we have provided specific options for this project funding.  At the time we applied 
for the grant, we were unsure if the USDA Rural Development funding would become a reality.  This project 
was intended to reimburse our expenses in the event USDA was not received.  So long as all project 
components are determined eligible by USDA, the entire amount of this funding can be used to expand the 
water service line replacement work.  We have submitted boxes of information to USDA and await their 
determination on well project eligibility; which we expect in full within one month.   
 
Assuming this project funding will be available for the water service lines, we had intended to immediately 
allocate this budget to the completion of the upgrade of the distribution system master meters and their 
connection to the SCADA system, as well as onsite water audit work (leak location) which will be done under 
service contract. We will also be contracting with our District Engineer for assistance in revising the meter 
reading route and associated databases and mapping.  This effort will make system wide water loss 
identification much easier; as we will be able to pinpoint the highest leaking tank zones by simultaneously 
reading distribution and customer meters; zone by zone.  Funding remaining from this work will fund service 
line replacements.  
 
Tasks include: 

1. Set up accounting system with Warmerdam CPA and develop management guidance memos for the 
contracting an accounting process 

2. Secure USDA eligibility 
3. Secure engineering design as necessary for the meter upgrades and development of water audit 

databases 
4. Secure proposals and service contract for meter upgrade work 
5. Secure leak detection services to identify the highest priority areas for service line replacements 

 
No additional direct District dollars will be spent on this project.  The matching budget has already been spent 
and documented in completion of the well projects.  The District, state and federal funding are all eligible for 
the local dollars.   
 

Project 3 – Regional Water Use Efficiency Project 
 
This project involves development of an enhanced water conservation program in Don Pedro, that can then be 
carried out within the budget to the remainder of the county by the Mariposa County Resource Conservation 
District (MCRCD); who will be under contract with the District.  This project involves a program to reimburse 
property owners for completing eligible water conservation projects.  The eligible projects, amount of any 
reimbursements and responsible entities have not yet been established; however the grant scope includes an 
overview of how the program will function.   
 
We do not intend to hire any additional employees for this project, nor do we expect to hire temporary 
employees for this 2+ year process.  The administration effort will be shared between the District and MCRCD; 
who will assign a project coordinator to assist us in program design, and conducting all work occurring outside 
the LDPCSD boundaries.   The project involves hiring a contractor (possibly MCRCD staff) to answer a 
dedicated phone line and respond to dedicated email and website inquiries for in-home water conservation 
assistance.  Water conservation kits will be purchased and housed at the CSD, with the MCRCD contractor both 
delivering the kits, and installing them on properties needing assistance.  The project scope lists the expected 
number of home visits and kits to be purchased and installed. The kits include low flow showerheads, faucet 
aerators, leak detection tablets and other items proven to immediately reduce water consumption.   
 
The rebate program will include property owner reimbursements for: 

Page 87



• Rainwater catchment systems that reduce demand on potable water systems for irrigation 
• Laundry to landscape systems where laundry discharge is piped for irrigation of existing landscape  
• Installation of new, low water using toilets replacing high water use and pre-1993 fixtures 
• The cost of conversion of spray irrigation to drip irrigation 
• The cost of installation of weather based irrigation controllers and related systems 

 
Some of the details yet to be worked out on this project include: 

1. Development of an agreement between the CSD and MCRCD for managing the home visits and out of 
area components of the project 

2. Development of the approved rebate project list, amounts and administration responsibilities 
3. Final development of the home visit program and contractor 
4. Purchase of materials and supplies 
5. Development of public outreach materials 

 
The matching portion of the budget has already for the most part been documented with our expenditures n the 
water supply emergency management and administration.  Additional staff work will be completed as in kind 
labor.  No direct district dollars will be spent on this project.   
  

Project 4 – Water Service Line Replacement Project 
 
In addition to the meter upgrades discussed in Project 2 above, this project involves the replacement of as many 
water service lines as possible within the funding available through the grant.  The project involves engineering 
design of the simple project bid packets, conducting the formal competitive bidding process and awarding a 
construction contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  The bid documents will require that the 
contractor be prepared to complete service line replacements in multiple areas of the system, which may 
increase the per unit cost.  As the project is funded with Proposition 84 grant dollars, we will need to hire a 
consultant to manage the review of the contractor’s certified payroll reports and report to the Department of 
Industrial Relations.  We anticipate the project will be exempt from CEQA under California law, and we will 
prepare and file the appropriate paperwork with the state. No additional environmental studies are expected.   
 
The project involves: 

1. Determine if reimbursement of the cost of service lateral replacements completed recently is eligible for 
reimbursement 

2. Completing engineering design and preparation of bids plans and specifications; management of the bid 
process.  District Engineer Binkley and District management will complete this work. 

3. Identify service lines to be replaced, construction staging areas, secure county permits and file 
paperwork with the state.  This is a cooperative effort between CSD staff and Binkley.   

4. Managing the construction contact and relationship with the contractor, as well as construction 
inspection.  This work will mostly be conducted by District staff.   

    
 The local match for this project has already been spent through the service line replacements completed over 
the past 18 months, plus associated staff time previous and as part of project management.  No additional 
District cash is needed for completion of the grant work scope; although it may be advantageous for the District 
to consider funding additional service line replacements with budget dollars or by securing a loan, especially if 
the contractor is cost efficient and the work is delivering expected water saving results.   

Page 88



GRANT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES) AND 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 4600011497 

2015 PROPOSITION 84 INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT (IRWM) IMPLEMENTATION GRANT 

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE § 75026 ET SEQ. 

 

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the Department of Water Resources of the State of 

California, herein referred to as the "State" or “DWR” and the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

(LDPCSD), a public agency in the State of California, duly organized, existing, and acting pursuant to the laws 

thereof, herein referred to as the "Grantee", which parties do hereby agree as follows: 

1. PURPOSE.  State shall provide funding from the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood 

Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 to Grantee to assist in financing projects associated 

with the Yosemite-Mariposa IRWM Plan pursuant to Chapter 8 (commencing with §79560) of Division 26.5 of 

the California Water Code (CWC), hereinafter collectively referred to as “IRWM Program.” 

2. TERM OF GRANT AGREEMENT. The term of this Grant Agreement begins on the date this Grant Agreement is 

executed by State, and terminates on September 30, 2018, or when all of the Parties’ obligations under this 

Grant Agreement are fully satisfied, whichever occurs earlier. Execution date is the date the State signs this 

Grant Agreement. 

3. GRANT AMOUNT. The maximum amount payable by the State under this Grant Agreement shall not exceed 

$1,001,547.  

4. GRANTEE COST SHARE. Grantee agrees to fund the difference between the Total Project Cost and the 

Grant Amount (amount specified in Paragraph 3). Grantee Cost Share consists of Funding Match and 

Additional Cost Share, as documented in Exhibit B (Budget). Additional Cost Share will not be reviewed by 

the State for invoicing purposes; however, the Grantee is required to maintain all financial records 

associated with the project in accordance with Exhibit I (State Audit Document Requirements and Funding 

Match Guidelines for Grantees). 

5. FUNDING MATCH. Grantee is required to provide a Funding Match (non-state funds) of not less than 25 

percent of the Grand Total of all the total project costs unless a Disadvantaged Community waiver is 

granted. Grantee agrees to provide a Funding Match for the amount as documented in Exhibit B (Budget), 

and may include expenses directly related to Exhibit A (Work Plan) after January 1, 2011. 

6. GRANTEE'S RESPONSIBILITY. Grantee and its representatives shall:  

a) Faithfully and expeditiously perform or cause to be performed all project work as described in Exhibit A 

(Work Plan) and in accordance with Exhibit B (Budget) and Exhibit C (Schedule).  

b) Accept and agree to comply with all terms, provisions, conditions, and written commitments of this 

Grant Agreement, including all incorporated documents, and to fulfill all assurances, declarations, 

representations, and statements made by Grantee in the application, documents, amendments, and 

communications filed in support of its request for Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood 

Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 financing.  

c) Comply with all applicable California laws and regulations.  

d) Implement the projects in accordance with applicable provisions of the law.  

e) Fulfill its obligations under the Grant Agreement, and be responsible for the performance of the projects.  

7. LOCAL PROJECT SPONSOR’S RESPONSIBILITY. Grantee shall assign Local Project Sponsors to act on behalf of 

Grantee for the purposes of individual project management, oversight, compliance, and operations and 

maintenance. Local Project Sponsors shall be assigned in accordance with the participating agencies 

identified in the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 2015 IRWM Implementation Grant Proposal 

grant application. Exhibit F identifies Local Project Sponsors. Local Project Sponsors shall also act on behalf 

of Grantee in the fulfillment of Grantee responsibilities where specifically specified in this Grant Agreement. 

8. BASIC CONDITIONS. State shall have no obligation to disburse money for projects under this Grant 

Agreement until Grantee has satisfied the following conditions (if applicable): 

Page 89



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 2 of 48 

 

 

a) Grantee demonstrates the availability of sufficient funds to complete each project by submitting the 

most recent 3 years of audited financial statements and submitting an Audited Financial Statement 

Summary for each Local Project Sponsor. 

b) Grantee must demonstrate compliance with the groundwater compliance options set forth on pages 

14 and 15 of the IRWM Program Guidelines, dated May 2015.  

c) Grantee submits deliverables as specified in Paragraph 19 of this Grant Agreement and in Exhibit A. 

d) Prior to the commencement of construction or implementation activities, Grantee shall submit the 

following to the State for each project: 

1) Final plans and specifications certified by a California Registered Professional (Civil Engineer or 

Geologist, as appropriate) for each approved project as listed in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement. 

2) Environmental Documentation: 

i) Grantee submits to the State all applicable environmental permits, 

ii) Documents that satisfy the CEQA process are received by the State, 

iii) State has completed its CEQA compliance review as a Responsible Agency, and 

iv) Grantee receives written concurrence from the State of Lead Agency’s CEQA documents and 

State notice of verification of environmental permit submittal. 

State’s concurrence of Lead Agency’s CEQA documents is fully discretionary and shall constitute a 

condition precedent to any work (i.e., construction or implementation activities) for which it is 

required. Once CEQA documentation has been completed, State will consider the environmental 

documents and decide whether to continue to fund the projects or to require changes, alterations 

or other mitigation. Grantee must also demonstrate that it has complied with all applicable 

requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act by submitting copies of any environmental 

documents, including environmental impact statements, Finding of No Significant Impact, and 

mitigation monitoring programs as may be required prior to beginning construction/implementation. 

3) A monitoring plan as required by Paragraph 21, “Project Monitoring Plan Requirements.”  

9. DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS. State will disburse to Grantee the amount approved, subject to the availability of 

funds through normal State processes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Grant Agreement, no 

disbursement shall be required at any time or in any manner which is in violation of, or in conflict with, 

federal or state laws, rules, or regulations, or which may require any rebates to the federal government, or 

any loss of tax-free status on state bonds, pursuant to any federal statute or regulation.  

10. ELIGIBLE PROJECT COST. Grantee shall apply State funds received only to Eligible Project Costs in 

accordance with applicable provisions of the law and Exhibit B. Eligible project costs include the 

reasonable costs of studies, engineering, design, land and easement acquisition, legal fees, preparation of 

environmental documentation, environmental mitigations, monitoring, and project construction. 

Reasonable administrative expenses may be included as Total Project Costs and will depend on the 

complexity of the project preparation, planning, coordination, construction, acquisitions, and 

implementation. Reimbursable administrative expenses are the necessary costs incidentally but directly 

related to the projects including the portion of overhead and administrative expenses that are directly 

related to the projects included in this Grant Agreement in accordance with the standard accounting 

practices of the Grantee. Work performed on the projects after January 17, 2014, shall be eligible for 

reimbursement. 

Costs that are not eligible for reimbursement with State funds cannot be counted as Funding Match. Costs 

that are not eligible for reimbursement include, but are not limited to the following items: 

a) Costs, other than those noted above, incurred prior to the award date of the Grant.  

b) Operation and maintenance costs, including post construction performance and monitoring costs. 

c) Purchase of equipment that is not an integral part of a project. 

d) Establishing a reserve fund. 

e) Purchase of water supply. 

f) Monitoring and assessment costs for efforts required after project construction is complete. 

Page 90



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 3 of 48 

 

 

g) Replacement of existing funding sources for ongoing programs. 

h) Travel and per diem costs (per diem includes subsistence and other related costs). 

i) Support of existing agency requirements and mandates (e.g., punitive regulatory agency 

requirement). 

j) Purchase of land in excess of the minimum required acreage necessary to operate as an integral part 

of a project, as set forth and detailed by engineering and feasibility studies.  

k) Payment of principal or interest of existing indebtedness or any interest payments unless the debt is 

incurred after execution of this Grant Agreement, the State agrees in writing to the eligibility of the 

costs for reimbursement before the debt is incurred, and the purposes for which the debt is incurred 

are otherwise eligible costs. However, this will only be allowed as Grantee Cost Share (i.e., Funding 

Match). 

l) Overhead not directly related to project costs. 

 

11. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  

a) Reimbursement – Submit a copy of invoice for costs incurred and supporting documentation to the 

DWR Project Manager via Grant Review and Tracking System (GRanTS).  Additionally, the original 

invoice form with signature and date (in ink) of Grantee’s Project Representative, as indicated on page 

10 of this Grant Agreement, must be sent to the DWR Project Manager for approval.  Invoices submitted 

via GRanTS shall include the following information:  

1) Costs incurred for work performed in implementing the project(s) during the period identified in the 

particular invoice. 

2) Costs incurred for any interests in real property (land or easements) that have been necessarily 

acquired for the project(s) during the period identified in the particular invoice for the 

implementation of a project.  

3) Invoices shall be submitted on forms provided by State and shall meet the following format 

requirements: 

i) Invoices must contain the date of the invoice, the time period covered by the invoice, and the 

total amount due. 

ii) Invoices must be itemized based on the categories (i.e., tasks) specified in Exhibit B. The amount 

claimed for salaries/wages/consultant fees must include a calculation formula (i.e., hours or 

days worked times the hourly or daily rate = the total amount claimed). 

iii) Sufficient evidence (e.g. receipts, copies of checks, time sheets) as determined by the State 

must be provided for all costs included in the invoice.  Additional Cost Share shall be accounted 

for separately in the progress reports.  

iv) DWR Project Manager will notify Grantee, in a timely manner, when, upon review of an invoice, 

the State determines that any portion or portions of the costs claimed are not eligible costs or 

are not supported by documentation or receipts acceptable to State. Grantee may, within thirty 

(30) calendar days of the date of receipt of such notice, submit additional documentation to 

State to cure such deficiency(ies).  After the disbursement requirements in Paragraph 8 “Basic 

Conditions” are met, State will disburse the whole or portions of State funding to Grantee, 

following receipt from Grantee via U.S. mail or Express mail delivery of a “wet signature” invoice 

for costs incurred, including Cost Share, and timely Quarterly Progress Reports as required by 

Paragraph 19 “Submission of Reports.” Payment will be made no more frequently than monthly, 

in arrears, upon receipt of an invoice bearing the Grant Agreement number.  

b) Advanced Payment – Water Code §10551 authorizes advance payment by State for projects which are 

sponsored by a nonprofit organization; a disadvantaged community (DAC); or, the proponent of a 

project that benefits a DAC.  If these projects are awarded less than $1,000,000 in grant funds, the 

project proponent may receive an advanced payment of 50% of the grant award; the remaining 50% 

of the grant award will be reimbursed in arrears.  Within 90 calendar days of execution of the Grant 

Agreement, the Grantee shall provide DWR an Advanced Payment Request.  The Advanced Payment 

Request must contain the following: 

1) Documentation demonstrating that each Local Project Sponsor was notified about their eligibility to 

receive an advanced payment and a response from the Local Project Sponsor stating whether it 

wishes to receive the advanced payment or not.   

Page 91



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 4 of 48 

 

 

2) If the Local Project Sponsor is requesting the advanced payment, the request must also include: 

i) A funding plan which shows how the advanced funds will be expended within 18 months of this 

Grant Agreement’s execution. (i.e., for what, how much, and when) 

ii) A discussion of the Local Project Sponsor’s financial capacity to complete the project once the 

advance funds have been expended.  

3) If an Local Project Sponsor is requesting advanced payment, Grantee shall also submit a single 

Advance Payment invoice, containing the request for each qualified project, to the DWR Project 

Manager with signature and date (in ink) of Grantee’s Project Representative, as indicated on page 

10 of this Agreement.  The Grantee shall be responsible for the timely distribution of the advanced 

funds to the individual Local Project Sponsors.  Within 60 calendar days of receiving the Advanced 

Payment invoice and subject to the availability of funds, State will authorize payment of the 

advanced funds sought of 50% of the grant award for the qualified project(s). 

 

The Advance Payment Invoice shall be submitted on forms provided by State and shall meet the 

following format requirements:  

1) Invoice must contain the date of the invoice, the time period covered by the invoice, and the total 

amount due. 

2) Invoice must be itemized based on the categories (i.e., tasks) specified in Exhibit B.  

3) DWR Project Manager will notify Grantee, in a timely manner, when, upon review of an Advance 

Payment Invoice, the State determines that any portion or portions of the costs claimed are not 

eligible costs. Grantee may, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of receipt of such notice, 

submit additional documentation to cure such deficiency(ies). After the disbursement requirements 

in Paragraph 8 “Basic Conditions” (8a) and 8b) only) are met, State will disburse the whole or 

portions of State funding to Grantee, following receipt from Grantee via US mail or Express mail 

delivery of a “wet signature” invoice for costs incurred, including Cost Share, and timely Progress 

Reports as required by Paragraph 19 “Submission of Reports.” 

 

On a quarterly basis, the Grantee will submit an Accountability Report to DWR that demonstrates how 

actual expenditures compare with the scheduled budget.  The Accountability Report shall include the 

following information: 

1) An itemization of how advanced funds have been expended to date (Expenditure Summary), 

including documentation that supports the expenditures (e.g. contractor invoices, receipts, 

personnel hours, etc.). Invoices must be itemized based on the categories (i.e., tasks) specified in 

Exhibit B. 

2) A funding plan which shows how the remaining advanced funds will be expended. 

3) Documentation that the funds were placed in a non-interest bearing account, including the dates 

of deposits and withdrawals from that account. 

DWR Project Manager will notify Grantee, in a timely manner, when, upon review of the Expenditure 

Summary, the State determines that any portion or portions of the expenditures claimed are not eligible 

costs. Grantee may, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of receipt of such notice, submit 

additional documentation to cure such deficiency(ies).  If costs are not consistent with the tasks in 

Exhibit B, the State will reject the claim and remove them from the Expenditure Summary.  

Once Grantee has expended all advanced funds, then the method of payment will revert to the 

reimbursement process specified in Paragraph 11a) and any remaining requirements of Paragraph 8. 

12. REPAYMENT OF ADVANCES. State may demand repayment from Grantee of all or any portion of the 

advanced State funding along with interest at the California general obligation bond interest rate at the 

time the State notifies the Grantee, as directed by State and take any other action that it deems necessary 

to protect its interests for the following conditions: 

a) A project is not being implemented in accordance with the provisions of this Grant Agreement.  

b) Grantee has failed in any other respect to comply with the provisions of this Grant Agreement, and if 

Grantee does not remedy any such failure to State’s satisfaction.  

 

 

Page 92



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 5 of 48 

 

 

Repayment amounts may also include: 

c) Advance funds which have not been expended within 18 months of the Grant Agreement’s execution 

by the Local Project Sponsor. 

d) Actual costs incurred are not consistent with the Exhibit A (Work Plan) activities, not supported, or are 

ineligible. 

e) At the completion of the project, the funds have not been expended. 

 

For conditions 12c) and 12d), repayment may consist of deducting the amount from future reimbursement 

invoices. 

 

State may consider Grantee’s refusal to repay the requested advanced amount a substantial breach of 

this Grant Agreement subject to the default provisions in Paragraph 14, “Default Provisions.”  If State notifies 

Grantee of its decision to demand repayment or withhold the entire funding amount from Grantee 

pursuant to this paragraph, this Grant Agreement shall terminate upon receipt of such notice by Grantee 

and the State shall no longer be required to provide funds under this Grant Agreement and the Grant 

Agreement shall no longer be binding on either party. 

13. WITHHOLDING OF DISBURSEMENTS BY STATE. If State determines that a project is not being implemented in 

accordance with the provisions of this Grant Agreement, or that Grantee has failed in any other respect to 

comply with the provisions of this Grant Agreement, and if Grantee does not remedy any such failure to 

State’s satisfaction, State may withhold from Grantee all or any portion of the State funding and take any 

other action that it deems necessary to protect its interests. Where a portion of the State funding has been 

disbursed to the Grantee and State notifies Grantee of its decision not to release funds that have been 

withheld pursuant to Paragraph 14, the portion that has been disbursed shall thereafter be repaid 

immediately with interest at the California general obligation bond interest rate at the time the State notifies 

the Grantee, as directed by State. State may consider Grantee’s refusal to repay the requested disbursed 

amount a contract breach subject to the default provisions in Paragraph 14, “Default Provisions.” If State 

notifies Grantee of its decision to withhold the entire funding amount from Grantee pursuant to this 

paragraph, this Grant Agreement shall terminate upon receipt of such notice by Grantee and the State 

shall no longer be required to provide funds under this Grant Agreement and the Grant Agreement shall no 

longer be binding on either party. 

14. DEFAULT PROVISIONS. Grantee (and a Local Project Sponsor receiving grant funding through this Grant 

Agreement) will be in default under this Grant Agreement if any of the following occur: 

a) Substantial breaches of this Grant Agreement, or any supplement or amendment to it, or any other 

agreement between Grantee and State evidencing or securing Grantee’s obligations. 

b) Making any false warranty, representation, or statement with respect to this Grant Agreement or the 

application filed to obtain this Grant Agreement. 

c) Failure to maintain an adopted IRWM Plan that meets the requirements contained in Part 2.2 of Division 

6 of the CWC, commencing with §10530. 

d) Failure to operate or maintain project(s) in accordance with this Grant Agreement (Paragraph 20).  

e) Failure to make any remittance required by this Grant Agreement. 

f) Failure to comply with Labor Compliance Program requirements (Paragraph 18). 

g) Failure to submit timely progress reports. 

h) Failure to routinely invoice State. 

i) Failure to meet any of the requirements set forth in Paragraph 15, “Continuing Eligibility.” 

Should an event of default occur, State shall provide a notice of default to the Grantee and shall give 

Grantee at least ten (10) calendar days to cure the default from the date the notice is sent via first-class 

mail to the Grantee. If the Grantee fails to cure the default within the time prescribed by the State, State 

may do any of the following: 

a) Declare the funding be immediately repaid, with interest, at the California general obligation bond 

interest rate at the time the State notifies the Grantee of the default. 

b) Terminate any obligation to make future payments to Grantee. 

Page 93



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 6 of 48 

 

 

c) Terminate the Grant Agreement. 

d) Take any other action that it deems necessary to protect its interests.  

In the event State finds it necessary to enforce this provision of this Grant Agreement in the manner 

provided by law, Grantee agrees to pay all costs incurred by State including, but not limited to, reasonable 

attorneys' fees, legal expenses, and costs. 

15. CONTINUING ELIGIBILITY. Grantee must meet the following ongoing requirement(s) to remain eligible to 

receive State funds: 

a) An urban water supplier that receives grant funds governed by this Grant Agreement shall: 

1) Maintain compliance with the Urban Water Management Planning (UWMP) Act (Water Code 

§10610 et. seq.) and Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction, Part 2.55 of Division 6 (Water 

Code §10608 et. Seq.).  Urban water suppliers that submitted AB 1420 compliance Table 2 in the 

2015 Implementation Grant Application must submit, until June 30, 2016, either: 

i) List of tasks to implement the best management practices listed in AB 1420 compliance Table 2 

and a corresponding schedule and budget or; 

ii) The progress toward the 2015 interim Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) target.  If not meeting 

the interim target also include a schedule, financing plan, and budget for achieving the GPCD, 

as required pursuant to Water Code §10608.24. 

By July 1, 2016 all urban water suppliers must submit documentation that demonstrates they are 

meeting the 2015 interim GPCD target.  If not meeting the interim target, also include a schedule, 

financing plan, and budget for achieving the GPCD, as required pursuant to Water Code 

§10608.24.  Starting June 30, 2017, those urban water suppliers that did not meet their 2015 GPCD 

target must also submit, by June 30, annual reports that include a schedule, financing plan, and 

budget for achieving the GPCD (Water Code §10608.24). 

2) Have their 2010 UWMP deemed consistent by DWR.  The 2015 UWMP update must be submitted to 

DWR by July 1, 2016. If the 2015 UWMP is not submitted to DWR by July 1, 2016, funding 

disbursements to the urban water supplier will cease until the 2015 UWMP is submitted.  If the 2015 

UWMP is deemed inconsistent by DWR, the urban water supplier will be ineligibe to receive funding 

disbursements until the inconsistencies are addressed and DWR deems the UWMP consistent.  For 

more information, visit the following website: http://www.water.ca.gov/urbanwatermanagement. 

b) An agricultural water supplier receiving grant funding must:  

1) Comply with Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction requirements outlined in Part 2.55 

(commencing with §10608) of Division 6 of the Water Code.  Before July 1, 2016, submit a schedule, 

financing plan, and budget for implementation of the efficient water management practices, 

required pursuant to Water Code §10608.48. 

2) Have their Agricultural Water Management Plan (AWMP) deemed consistent by DWR.  The most 

recent AWMP update must have been submitted to DWR by December 31, 2015.  To maintain 

eligibility and continue funding disbursements, an agricultural water supply must have their 2015 

AWMP deemed consistent by DWR on or before October 1, 2016.  For more information, visit the 

following website: http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/agricultural/agmgmt.cfm. 

c) Grantees diverting surface water must maintain compliance with diversion reporting requirements as 

outlined in Part 5.1 of Division 2 of the Water Code. 

d) Projects with potential groundwater impacts must demonstrate compliance with the groundwater 

compliance options set forth on pages 14 and 15 of the IRWM Program Guidelines, dated May 2015.  

e) Project Proponents that have been designated as monitoring entities under the California Statewide 

Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM) Program must maintain reporting compliance, as 

required by Water Code §10920 and the CASGEM Program. 

Page 94

http://www.water.ca.gov/urbanwatermanagement
http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/agricultural/agmgmt.cfm


Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 7 of 48 

 

 

16. PERMITS, LICENSES, APPROVALS, AND LEGAL OBLIGATIONS. Grantee shall be responsible for obtaining any 

and all permits, licenses, and approvals required for performing any work under this Grant Agreement, 

including those necessary to perform design, construction, or operation and maintenance of the project. 

Grantee shall be responsible for observing and complying with any applicable federal, state, and local 

laws, rules or regulations affecting any such work, specifically those including, but not limited to, 

environmental, procurement, and safety laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances. Grantee shall provide 

copies of permits and approvals to State. 

17. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. Grantee is solely responsible for design, construction, and operation and 

maintenance of each project within the work plan. Review or approval of plans, specifications, bid 

documents, or other construction documents by State is solely for the purpose of proper administration of 

funds by State and shall not be deemed to relieve or restrict responsibilities of Grantee under this Grant 

Agreement. 

18. LABOR COMPLIANCE. Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable California Labor Code requirements 

and Standard Condition D.28 in Exhibit D. Grantee must, independently or through a third party, adopt and 

enforce a Department of Industrial Relations-certified Labor Compliance Program (LCP) meeting the 

requirements of Labor Code §1771.5 for projects funded by: 

a) Proposition 84 (Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal 

Protection Bond Act of 2006; Public Resources Code §75075 et seq.) or 

b) Any other funding source requiring an LCP. 
 

At the State’s request, Grantee must promptly submit written evidence of Grantee’s compliance with the 

LCP requirements. 

19. SUBMISSION OF REPORTS. The submittal and approval of all reports is a requirement for the successful 

completion of this Grant Agreement. Reports shall meet generally accepted professional standards for 

technical reporting and shall be proofread for content, numerical accuracy, spelling, and grammar prior to 

submittal to State. If requested, Grantee shall promptly provide any additional information deemed 

necessary by State for the approval of reports. Reports shall be presented in the formats described in the 

applicable portion of Exhibit G. The timely submittal of reports is a requirement for initial and continued 

disbursement of State funds. Submittal and subsequent approval by the State of a Project Completion 

Report is a requirement for the release of any funds retained for such projects. 

a) Progress Reports:  Grantee shall submit progress reports on a regular and consistent basis to meet the 

State’s requirement for disbursement of funds. The reporting period shall not exceed one quarter in 

length. The progress reports shall be sent via e-mail to the State’s Project Manager and shall be 

uploaded into GRanTS at the frequency specified in Exhibit C (Schedule). The progress reports shall 

provide a brief description of the work performed during the reporting period including: Grantee’s 

activities, milestones achieved, any accomplishments, and any problems encountered in the 

performance of the work under this Agreement. 

b) Accountability Report: Grantee shall submit, on a quarterly basis, an Accountability Report by individual 

Local Project Sponsor that at a minimum: 

1) An itemization of how advanced funds have been expended to date (Expenditure Summary), 

including documentation that supports the expenditures (e.g. contractor invoices, receipts, 

personnel hours, etc.). Invoices must be itemized based on the categories (i.e., tasks) specified in 

Exhibit B. 

2) A funding plan which shows how the remaining advanced funds will be expended. 

3) Provides an accounting of distributing the advanced funds to the appropriate Local Project 

Sponsor. 

4) Documents that the funds were spent on eligible reimbursable costs.  

5) Documentation that the funds were placed in a non-interest bearing account, including the dates 

of deposits and withdrawals from that account. 

c) Water Management Status Report: Until June 30, 2016, Grantee shall submit a status report on 

implementation of either AB 1420 status or SBx7-7 water conservation status for the urban water suppliers 

Page 95



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 8 of 48 

 

 

that submitted an AB 1420 compliance Table 2 in the 2015 Implementation Grant Application.  AB 1420 

status reports shall be uploaded into GRanTS no later than 30 calendar days after execution of this 

agreement.  SBx7-7 GPCD status reports shall be uploaded via GRanTS no later than June 30, 2016. By 

July 1, 2016 all urban water suppliers must submit an UWMP that demonstrates they are meeting the 

2015 interim SBx7-7 GPCD target.  If the urban water supplier is not meeting the interim target, then the 

urban water suppliers must also submit with its UWMP, a schedule, financing plan, and budget for 

achieving the GPCD (Water Code §10608.24).  Starting June 30, 2017, those urban water suppliers that 

did not meet their 2015 GPCD target must also submit, by June 30, annual reports that include a 

schedule, financing plan, and budget for achieving the GPCD ( Water Code §10608.24).  Failure to 

progress on implementation may result in continuing grant eligibility actions under Paragraph 15.  Before 

July 1, 2016, all agricultural water suppliers must submit a schedule, financing plan, and budget for 

implementation of the efficient water management practices, required pursuant to Water Code 

§10608.48 to comply with Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction requirements outlined in Part 

2.55 (commencing with §10608) of Division 6 of the Water Code. 

d) Project Completion Report: Grantee shall prepare and submit to State a separate Project Completion 

Report for each project included in Exhibit A. Grantee shall submit a Project Completion Report within 

ninety (90) calendar days of project completion. Project Completion Report(s) shall include, in part, a 

description of actual work done, any changes or amendments to each project, and a final schedule 

showing actual progress versus planned progress, copies of any final documents or reports generated or 

utilized during a project. The Project Completion Report shall also include, if applicable, certification of 

final project by a California Registered Professional (Civil Engineer or Geologist, as appropriate), 

consistent with Standard Condition D.19 in Exhibit D. A DWR “Certification of Project Completion” form 

will be provided by the State.  

e) Grant Completion Report:  Upon completion of all projects included in Exhibit A, Grantee shall submit to 

State a Grant Completion Report. The Grant Completion Report shall be submitted within ninety (90) 

calendar days of submitting the Project Completion Report for the final project to be completed under 

this Grant Agreement. The Grant Completion Report shall include reimbursement status, a brief 

description of each project completed, and how those projects will further the goals of the IRWM Plan 

and identify any changes to the IRWM Plan, as a result of project implementation. Retention for the last 

project to be completed as part of this Grant Agreement will not be disbursed until the Grant 

Completion Report is submitted to and approved by the State.  

f) Post-Performance Reports: Grantee shall submit Post-Performance Reports. Post-Performance Reports 

shall be submitted to State within ninety (90) calendar days after the first operational year of a project 

has elapsed. This record keeping and reporting process shall be repeated annually for a total of 10 

years after the completed project(s) begins operation. 

20. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PROJECT. For the useful life of construction and implementation 

projects and in consideration of the funding made by State, Grantee agrees to ensure or cause to be 

performed the commencement and continued operation of each project, and shall ensure or cause each 

project to be operated in an efficient and economical manner; shall ensure all repairs, renewals, and 

replacements necessary to the efficient operation of the same are provided; and shall ensure or cause the 

same to be maintained in as good and efficient condition as upon its construction, ordinary and 

reasonable wear and depreciation excepted. The State shall not be liable for any cost of such 

maintenance, management, or operation. Grantee or their successors may, with the written approval of 

State, transfer this responsibility to use, manage, and maintain the property. For purposes of this Grant 

Agreement, “useful life” means period during which an asset, property, or activity is expected to be usable 

for the purpose it was acquired or implemented; “operation costs” include direct costs incurred for material 

and labor needed for operations, utilities, insurance, and similar expenses, and  “maintenance costs” 

include ordinary repairs and replacements of a recurring nature necessary for capital assets and basic 

structures and the expenditure of funds necessary to replace or reconstruct capital assets or basic 

structures. Refusal of Grantee to ensure operation and maintenance of the projects in accordance with this 

provision may, at the option of State, be considered a breach of this Grant Agreement and may be 

treated as default under Paragraph 14, “Default Provisions.” 

Page 96



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 9 of 48 

 

 

21. PROJECT MONITORING PLAN REQUIREMENTS. Grantee shall develop and submit to State a Project 

Monitoring Plan that incorporates: (1) the Project Performance Monitoring Table requirements outlined in 

the Proposition 84 2015 IRWM Implementation Grant Proposal Solicitation Package (pages 20 and 21), and 

(2) the guidance provided in Exhibit J, “Project Monitoring Plan Guidance.”  

22. STATEWIDE MONITORING REQUIREMENTS. Grantee shall ensure that all groundwater projects and projects 

that include groundwater monitoring requirements are consistent with the Groundwater Quality Monitoring 

Act of 2001 (Part 2.76 (commencing with §10780) of Division 6 of California Water Code) and, where 

applicable, that projects that affect water quality shall include a monitoring component that allows the 

integration of data into statewide monitoring efforts, including where applicable, the Surface Water 

Ambient Monitoring Program carried out by the State Water Resources Control Board. See Exhibit H 

(Requirements for Statewide Monitoring and Data Submittal), for web links and information regarding other 

State monitoring and data reporting requirements. 

23. NOTIFICATION OF STATE. Grantee shall promptly notify State, in writing, of the following items:  

a) Events or proposed changes that could affect the scope, budget, or work performed under this Grant 

Agreement. Grantee agrees that no substantial change in the scope of a projects will be undertaken 

until written notice of the proposed change has been provided to State and State has given written 

approval for such change. Substantial changes generally include changes to the work plan, schedule 

or term, and budget.  

b) Any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments and/or results of this Grant Agreement and 

provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by State’s representatives. Grantee shall 

make such notification at least 14 calendar days prior to the event.  

c) Final inspection of the completed work on a project by a California Registered Professional (Civil 

Engineer or Geologist, as appropriate), in accordance with Standard Condition D.19 in Exhibit D. 

Grantee shall notify the State’s Project Manager of the inspection date at least 14 calendar days prior 

to the inspection in order to provide State the opportunity to participate in the inspection. 

24. NOTICES. Any notice, demand, request, consent, or approval that either party desires or is required to give 

to the other party under this Grant Agreement shall be in writing. Notices may be transmitted by any of the 

following means:  

a) By delivery in person. 

b) By certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.  

c) By “overnight” delivery service; provided that next-business-day delivery is requested by the sender. 

d) By electronic means.  

 

Notices delivered in person will be deemed effective immediately on receipt (or refusal of delivery or 

receipt). Notices sent by certified mail will be deemed effective given ten (10) calendar days after the date 

deposited with the U. S. Postal Service. Notices sent by overnight delivery service will be deemed effective 

one business day after the date deposited with the delivery service. Notices sent electronically will be 

effective on the date of transmission, which is documented in writing. Notices shall be sent to the addresses 

set forth in Paragraph 26. Either party may, by written notice to the other, designate a different address that 

shall be substituted for the one below. 

25. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Upon completion of this Grant Agreement, Grantee’s performance will be 

evaluated by the State and a copy of the evaluation will be placed in the State file and a copy sent to the 

Grantee. 

26. PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES. The Project Representatives during the term of this Grant Agreement are as 

follows:  

Department of Water Resources 

Arthur Hinojosa 

Chief, Division of IRWM 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Peter Kampa 

General Manager 

Page 97



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 10 of 48 

 

 

P.O. Box 942836 

Sacramento CA 94236-0001 

Phone: (916) 653-4736  

e-mail: Arthur.Hinojosa@water.ca.gov 

9751 Merced Falls Rd. 

La Grange, CA  95329 

Phone: (209) 694-7023 

e-mail: pete@ldpcsd.org  

 

Direct all inquiries to the Project Manager: 

Department of Water Resources 

Jason Preece 

Division of Integrated Regional Water Management 

P.O. Box 942836 

Sacramento CA 94236-0001 

Phone: (916) 651-9636  

e-mail: Jason.preece@water.ca.gov 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Peter Kampa 

General Manager 

9751 Merced Falls Rd. 

La Grange, CA  95329 

Phone: (209) 694-7023 

e-mail: pete@ldpcsd.org  

 

Either party may change its Project Representative or Project Manager upon written notice to the other 

party. 

27. STANDARD PROVISIONS. The following Exhibits are attached and made a part of this Grant Agreement by 

this reference: 

Exhibit A – Work Plan 

Exhibit B – Budget 

Exhibit C – Schedule 

Exhibit D – Standard Conditions 

Exhibit E – Authorizing Resolution 

Exhibit F – Local Project Sponsors 

Exhibit G – Report Formats and Requirements 

Exhibit H – Requirements for Statewide Monitoring and Data Submittal 

Exhibit I – State Audit Document Requirements and Funding Match Guidelines for Grantees 

Exhibit J – Project Monitoring Plan Guidance 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Grant Agreement. 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

 

 

______________________________ 

Arthur Hinojosa, P.E., Chief 

Division of Integrated Regional Water Management  

 

Date__________________________ 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Peter Kampa 

General Manager 

 

Date__________________________ 

 

 

Approved as to Legal Form and Sufficiency 

 

______________________________ 

Robin Brewer, Assistant Chief Counsel 

Office of Chief Counsel 

 

Date__________________________ 

 

  

Page 98



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 11 of 48 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

WORK PLAN 

 

The Proposition 84 2015 IRWM Implementation Grant agreement provides funding for four projects located within the 
Yosemite-Mariposa IRWM region.  

PROJECT 1: GRANT AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION 

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY: Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Regional Water Management Group, authorized Lake Don Pedro Community Services 
District (LDPCSD)(Grantee) to act as the applicant and the grant manager for the Proposition 84 2015 IRWM 
Implementation Grant. 

The Grantee will administer these funds and respond to DWR’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with 
the grant administration. The Grantee will act in a coordination role: disseminating grant compliance information to the 
project managers responsible for implementing the projects contained in this agreement, obtaining and retaining 
evidence of compliance (e.g., CEQA/NEPA documents, reports, monitoring compliance documents, labor requirements, 
etc), obtaining data for progress reports from individual project managers, assembling and submitting progress reports 
to the State, and coordinating all invoicing and payment of invoices. 

Budget Category (a): Direct Project Administration  

Task 1a Agreement Administration  

As a part of Task 1a, the Grantee prepared, or had prepared by others, the grant proposal containing information and 
documentation useful to the projects and preparation of the grant agreement.  Under Task 1a, the Grantee will also 
respond to DWR’s reporting and compliance requirements associated with the grant administration and will coordinate 
with the project managers responsible for implementing the projects contained in this agreement. 

Task 1b Invoicing  

The Grantee will be responsible for compiling invoices for submittal to DWR.  This includes collecting invoice 
documentation for each of the projects and compiling the information into a DWR Invoice Packet. 

Task 1c Progress Reports and Project Completion Report(s)  

The Grantee will be responsible for compiling progress reports for submittal to DWR. The Grantee will coordinate with 
project staff to retain consultants as needed to prepare and submit, Progress Reports and Final Grant Completion 
Report.  

Reports will meet generally accepted professional standards for technical reporting and the requirements terms of the 
contract with DWR outlined in Exhibit G of this agreement. For example, Progress Reports will explain the status of the 
project and will include the following information: summary of the work completed for the project during the reporting 
period; activities and milestones achieved; and accomplishments and any problems encountered in the performance of 
work. Project Completion Reports will include: documentation of actual work done, changes and amendments to each 
project, a final schedule showing actual progress versus planned progress, and copies of final documents and reports 
generated during the project.  

Deliverables: 

 Invoices and associated backup documentation 

 Progress Reports 

 Draft and Final Grant Completion Report 

Page 99



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 12 of 48 

 

 

PROJECT 2: WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENT/GROUNDWATER WELLS 

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY:  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves increasing LDPCSD’s water supply reliability and drought tolerance by 
installing two new groundwater supply wells.  The two new emergency wells will have an anticipated combined capacity 
of 175 gallons per minute in order to mitigate current and future water supply shortages during drought. Project 2 will 
complete the remaining work on the groundwater wells consisting primarily of installation of well appurtenances, like 
well hook-ups, controls and monitoring equipment.  Pending available remaining funds from completing the wells, 
upgrades to the water distribution will be made that will include installing up to nine (9) master water meters with the 
installation of flow transmitters connected to the existing Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system to 
allow for continuous monitoring of water consumption on a tank zone by tank zone basis for real-time, pinpoint service 
line and system leak detection, as well as installing additional service line replacements to reduce groundwater 
extractions and limiting the need for additional wells.   

Budget Category (a): Direct Project Administration 

Task 1a Project Management  

Manage grant agreement including compliance with grant requirements, and preparation and submission of supporting 
grant documents. Prepare supporting documentation for invoice submittals to DWR.  This task also includes 
administrative responsibilities associated with the project such as coordinating with partnering agencies and managing 
consultants/contractors. 

Deliverables: 

 Environmental Information Form (EIF) 

 Financial Statements 

 Invoice supporting documentation 

 Other Applicable Project Deliverables 

Task 1b Labor Compliance Program  

The District has recently prepared an approved Labor Compliance Program for its Emergency Groundwater Well Project 
funded under Proposition 84 by the State Water Resources Control Board and Department of Water Resources.  The 
District will take all measures necessary to ensure compliance with applicable California Labor Code requirements, 
including, update of the labor compliance program or including any payments to the Department of Industrial Relations 
under Labor Code Section 1771.3.   

Deliverables: 

 Proof of labor compliance upon request 

Task 1c Reporting  

Prepare supporting information for progress reports detailing work completed during reporting periods as outlined in 
Exhibit (G) of this agreement. 

Prepare Draft Project Completion Report and submit to DWR for DWR comment and review no later than 90 days after 
project completion.  Prepare Final Report addressing DWR’s comments. The report shall be prepared and presented in 
accordance with the provision of Exhibit G. 

Deliverables: 

 Draft and Final Project Completion Report 

Page 100



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 13 of 48 

 

 

Budget Category (b): Land Purchase/Easement 

Task 2 Land Purchase/Easement  

For one of the two proposed wells, a candidate location was selected, and LDPCSD purchased this 17-acre property using 
LDPCSD funds. LDPCSD located the second well on existing publicly owned property so no additional land purchase was 
required. 

Well locations were selected to minimize the need for easements to the extent feasible. A fifteen-foot-wide, 16,500-
square-foot easement was acquired by the District for well-related equipment and pipeline connections from the wells.   

Land acquisition is not necessary for the service line replacements as all work will occur within existing easements and 
County road right-of-way.   

Deliverables: 

 All relevant documentation regarding acquisition of easement including final recorded deed, and title report. 

Budget Category (c): Planning/Design/Engineering and Environmental Documentation 

Task 3a Feasibility Studies  

LDPCSD has been conducting feasibility studies since February 2015. Given the hydrogeological conditions of the area 
(fractured rock formations), two pilot well sites were required at different locations to identify sufficient water supply. 
Review of candidate well locations has been conducted to verify that the various wells drilled were not hydraulically 
connected to one another, to determine the requirements for physical connection to the water distribution system, 
confirm well water quality and production capacity, and analyze storage and demand issues. The two pilot wells were 
installed and tested per state standards and ultimately determined to be unacceptable for development due to poor 
water quality and low production.  A third well site was identified, pilot well drilled and water quality sampled, pump 
testing and logging completed and determined to be adequate in both water quality and quantity, with testing results 
used to form the basis for the well and pumping plant design.  

Deliverables: 

 Preliminary Design Report including well driller’s logs 

Task 3b CEQA Documentation  

LDPCSD has completed and certified an environmental assessment in accordance with National Environmental Policy Act 
guidelines, and filed a CEQA Notice of Exemption for installation of the pilot wells, final development of three wells 
including pipeline connections, and iron and manganese treatment system. No anticipated negative environmental 
effects were identified, and preconstruction surveys for ground-nesting birds will be conducted before May 1, 2016.   

For the Service Line Replacement alternative, the implementing agency will prepare a CEQA Notice of Exemption under 
Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations Section 15302, Replacement or Reconstruction (Class 2 Categorical 
Exemption, which includes replacement/reconstruction of existing water pipelines. 

Deliverables: 

 Copy of CEQA Notice of Exemption 

 Copy of the project environmental assessment if requested 

 Copy of Receipt of Filing from the County of Mariposa 

 Copy of Receipt of Filing from the County of Tuolumne 

 No Legal Challenges Letter 

Page 101



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 14 of 48 

 

 

Task 3c Permitting  

Obtain all necessary federal, state, and local permits. Permits may include:  

 County Encroachment Permit 

 Mariposa County well drilling and electrical permits 

Additional permits may be required and will be obtained as necessary. 

Deliverables: 

 Copy of all required permits 

Task 3d Design  

Based on the pilot well drilling results, the hydrogeologist on-contract with LDPCSD provided test pumping analysis to 
establish the criteria for design and specifications, and the District’s engineering consultant has completed the design 
plans and specifications for the well installations, including the screen material, packing and depth of well. In addition, 
the design plans and specifications for all associated surface facility improvements and well equipment such as pumps, 
control and monitoring equipment, electrical equipment, site work, and pipelines have been completed under this task. 

For the Service Line Replacement alternative, tasks will involve design of replacement and upgrade of existing 
distribution system master water meters, to include flow transmitters with system production and consumption data 
compared on a continuous, real-time basis.  Design will involve logic pattern identification of the master meter flow data 
use in conjunction with electronic readings from read-customer water meters to identify portions of the water system 
with the highest leakage loss.   

Design also includes utilizing the District’s existing standard construction specifications and details for pipe material, 
pavement and trench bedding, confirming and documenting the pavement details and depth to pipe for each 
replacement location type, and compiling this information to be included in the bid package. As LDPCSD has been 
conducting similar work in the past, a single design submittal is anticipated. 

Deliverables: 

 Updated Project Cost Estimate 

 100% Design Documents 

Task 3e Project Monitoring Plan  

For the well project, the District has performed extensive pilot testing and analysis to project the performance of the 
wells when pumped continuously for six months.  The District will develop and submit a well or service line replacement 
Project Monitoring Plan.  Along with the Project Performance Measures Table provided by DWR project manager, the 
Project Monitoring Plan (as described in Exhibit J) will include baseline conditions, a brief discussion of monitoring 
systems to be used, methodology of monitoring, frequency of monitoring, and location of monitoring points.  

The District has developed a system leakage identification protocol and spreadsheet to be used in monitoring the water 
service line replacement project success in reducing leakage rates. 

Deliverables: 

 Project Monitoring Plan 

 Emergency groundwater well testing evaluation report 

Budget Category (d): Construction/Implementation 

Task 4a Construction Contracting  

LDPCSD has already drilled and tested the wells, chosen one well location for final development, installed the well 
casing, pump, electrical equipment and temporary pipe connections associated with the well installations under a 

Page 102



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 15 of 48 

 

 

continuous emergency declaration pursuant to California Public Contract Code Sections 22035 and 22050.  In addition, 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) has designed and installed the electrical power equipment to the well site.   

For the Service Line Replacement alternative, this task includes as-needed activities, including developing bid 
documents, preparing advertisement and contract documents, for construction contract bidding, conducting pre‐bid 
meeting, bid opening and evaluation and selection of the contractor, award of contract, and issuance of notice to 
proceed. 

Deliverables: 

 LDPCSD Emergency Declarations and exemption from public bidding requirements 

 Bid documents 

 Proof of Advertisement 

 Award of contract 

 Notice to proceed 

Task 4b Construction Administration  

This task includes managing contractor submittal review, answering requests for information, and issuing work 
directives. Construction observer duties will include: documenting of pre‐construction conditions, daily construction 
diary, preparing change orders, addressing questions of contractors on site, reviewing/ updating project schedule, 
reviewing contractor log submittals and pay requests, forecasting cash flow, notifying contractor if work is not 
acceptable. 

Deliverables: 

 Notice of Completion 

Task 4c Construction/Implementation Activities 

For the well installation alternative, work activities include: 

4c(1): Mobilization and Demobilization Including production well drilling, casing, screening, development and 
testing. 

4c(2): Site preparation will include vegetation stripping, debris clearing and leveling as needed for well drilling, 
equipping and pipeline installations. 

4c(3): Drilling and constructing of water supply wells, installation of the associated equipment, including pumps, 
control and monitoring equipment, electrical equipment, and disinfection/treatment system, as well as installation 
of the pipes and valves for connecting to the water distribution system. 

4c(4): Other improvements may include fence installation and surface restoration of the well sites and pipe layout 
areas.  

For Service Line Replacement alternative, the construction contractor service replacement work will be focused in the 
areas of the system determined to have the highest leak rates. Depending on available funding, work activities will likely 
include: 

4c(1): Mobilization and demobilization. 

4c(2): Notifying the affected customers (up to one day of service disruptions may be necessary). 

4c(3): Upgrade up to nine (9) master water meters with the installation of flow transmitters connected to the 
existing Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system  

4c(4): Removing up to 65 existing service lines if necessary, using either trenching or trenchless method, depending 
on the specific location. 

4c(5): Installing the new pipes and re-connecting them to the corporation stop on the water main and the end users’ 
meter yoke or angle stop valve. 

4c(6): Site restoration including repaving the streets and replacing landscaping. 

Page 103



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 16 of 48 

 

 

Deliverables: 

 Photographic documentation 

PROJECT 3: REGIONAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM 

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY:  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The proposed program will include multiple elements to promote water conservation by 
residential and commercial water users. The program will initially focus on the LDPCSD’s service area within Mariposa 
County for the first year, and later expand to the remainder of Mariposa County. The program will include education and 
outreach, house calls, rebates and incentives. 

Budget Category (a): Direct Project Administration 

Task 1a Project Management  

Manage grant agreement including compliance with grant requirements, and preparation and submission of supporting 
grant documents. Prepare invoice supporting documentation for submittal to DWR.  This task also includes 
administrative responsibilities associated with the project such as coordinating with partnering agencies and managing 
consultants/contractors. 

Deliverables: 

 Environmental Information Form (EIF) 

 Financial Statements 

 Invoice supporting documentation 

 Other Applicable Project Deliverables 

Task 1b Labor Compliance Program  

The project does not involve any “public works” construction elements that would require the payment of prevailing 
wages. Therefore, it is not required to initiate and enforce a Labor Compliance Program in accordance with the Labor 
Code 1771.5 for this project.   

Task 1c Reporting  

Prepare supporting information for progress reports detailing work completed during reporting period as outlined in 
Exhibit (G) of this agreement. 

Prepare Draft Project Completion Report and submit to DWR for DWR comment and review no later than 90 days after 
project completion.  Prepare Final Report addressing DWR’s comments. The report shall be prepared and presented in 
accordance with the provision of Exhibit G. 

Deliverables: 

 Draft and Final Project Completion Report 

Budget Category (b): Land Purchase/Easement 

Task 2 Land Purchase/Easement  

Land purchase/easement is not needed for the project. 

Budget Category (c): Planning/Design/Engineering and Environmental Documentation 

Task 3a Feasibility Studies  

The water efficiency program elements included in the project have been demonstrated to be feasible and effective in 
Tuolumne County and elsewhere in the state. Incentive programs have been specifically crafted and incentivized in 

Page 104



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 17 of 48 

 

 

response to needs identified by local water providers and their customers. Therefore, no separate feasibility study will 
be required to implement the proposed project.  

Deliverables: 

 Preliminary Water Use Efficiency Program Description 

Task 3b CEQA Documentation  

The Regional Water Use Efficiency Program is not a project as defined by CEQA 

Task 3c Permitting 

Obtain all necessary federal, state, and local permits. Permits may include:  

 County Encroachment Permit 

Additional permits may be required and will be obtained as necessary. 

Deliverables: 

 Copy of all required permits 

Task 3d Design  

LDPCSD staff has been working to identify the financial, staffing, and external resources needed to implement and 
manage a successful water conservation program. Additional tasks to be completed to finalize the program design 
include: 

 Modifying the existing public outreach materials to tailor the content to the local audience as necessary 

 Determining the detailed methods and schedules for outreach, marketing and educational program curriculum 
development, venue identification and scheduling 

 Determining the details of the Terms and Conditions, application process, any applicable system design or 
homeowner permitting requirements, inspection and installation verification process and reimbursement 
methods for the Incentive Program  

Deliverables: 

 Marketing and outreach materials 

 Educational workshop schedules and agendas 

 Incentive Program Terms and Conditions 

Task 3e Project Monitoring Plan  

Develop and submit a Project Monitoring Plan.  Along with the Project Performance Measures Table provided by DWR 
project manager, the Project Monitoring Plan (as described in Exhibit J) will include baseline conditions, a brief 
discussion of monitoring systems to be used, methodology of monitoring, frequency of monitoring, and location of 
monitoring points. 

The project performance monitoring parameters are anticipated to include the number of program participants (e.g., 
number of Water Kits installed, number of rebates disbursed, high efficiency toilets or urinals installed, square feet of 
turf eliminated, irrigation systems modified to drip), water use reduction data for metered program participants, and 
data from follow-up surveys for non-metered program participants. 

Deliverables: 

 Project Monitoring Plan 

 

Page 105



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 18 of 48 

 

 

Budget Category (d): Construction/Implementation 

Task 4a Construction Contracting  

The proposed program will primarily be administered and managed by a third party program coordinator. In addition, 
third party contractors will be secured through a Request for Proposal (RFP) process to implement the House Call 
Program and Technical Assistance program elements. The contracting activity will include: developing the request for 
proposals, evaluation and review of the proposals, selection of the contractor, award of contract, and issuance of notice 
to proceed. 

Deliverables: 

 Request for Proposal 

 Proof of Advertisement 

 Award of contract 

 Notice to proceed 

Task 4b Construction Administration  

The program coordinator will administer the Incentive Program, including monitoring project compliance and 
completion, and identifying and coordinating with equipment supply vendors and contractors. Incentive Program 
administration will include the following activities: 

 Customer outreach and marketing via the program website, mailers, workshops and outreach activities at 
community events. 

 Receiving customer applications for program participation. 

 Purchase and distribution of water saving showerheads, faucet aerators, hose nozzles, shower timers, toilet 
leak test tablets and other water use reduction devices. 

 House Calls / Audits -- Third party contractors will conduct house calls / audits and provide property owners 
with a site-specific efficiency plan that identifies appropriate measure(s) and/or device(s) for the property.  

 Rebate Distribution. Upon verification and/or inspection of the purchase of relevant materials/devices, or 
installation of approved devices or systems, the customer will be reimbursed. 

 The program coordinator will provide regular reports to LDPCSD, outlining ongoing implementation 
activities. Upon project completion the third party administrators will provide a final report on 
implementation. 

Deliverables: 

 Preliminary Water Use Efficiency Program Description 

 Task 4c Construction/Implementation Activities  

The following presents the estimated quantities of water-saving retrofits and incentive rebates to be provided under the 
Program: 

4c(1): Water Use Reduction Kits and/or devices (kit includes water-saving retrofit plumbing fixtures including 
two faucet aerators, showerhead, sprinkler nozzle, toilet tank die tablets, leak info card, and water heater wrap). 
Up to 700 kits at approximately $15 per kit  will be available and a $30 incentive paid to the first 200 customers 
verifying full installation. 

4c(2): Greywater (laundry to landscape or fixed lateral system)- or rainwater catchment-to-irrigation system 
rebate: up to 100 properties will receive approximately $500 rebates from the program. 

4c(3): Irrigation system and landscaping modification rebate: up to a maximum of $250 per property and up to 
100 properties will receive rebates for conversion of spray irrigation to drip, installation of smart irrigation 
controllers and sensors, and/or lawn removal or replacement of high-water-use landscaping with drought 
tolerant landscaping. 

Page 106



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 19 of 48 

 

 

4c(4): High Efficiency Toilet rebate: up to 400 units will be reimbursed approximately $75 under the rebate 
program.   

The actual number of rebates and specific amount of the rebate is subject to change based on program performance 
and customer interest. 

Deliverables: 

 Photographic documentation 

PROJECT 4: SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT 

IMPLEMENTING AGENCY:  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project will replace existing water service lines that are over 40 years old and subject to 
frequent leaks. Approximately 375 segments of service lines from the water main corporation stop (i.e., the start of end 
user’s water line) to the water meter box will be replaced with pipes that meet current codes and standards for material 
and diameter. Since the LDPCSD service area is in both Tuolumne and Mariposa Counties, the replacement work will be 
in both counties, addressing the worst leaking service line segments first.   

Budget Category (a): Direct Project Administration 

Task 1a Project Management  

Manage grant agreement including compliance with grant requirements, and preparation and submission of supporting 
grant documents. Prepare invoice supporting documentation for submittal to DWR.  This task also includes 
administrative responsibilities associated with the project such as coordinating with partnering agencies and managing 
consultants/contractors. 

Deliverables: 

 Environmental Information Form (EIF) 

 Financial Statements 

 Other Applicable Project Deliverables 

Task 1b Labor Compliance Program  

LDPCSD has developed and implemented an approved labor compliance program used for its recent Proposition 84 
funded groundwater well projects.  LDPCSD will take all measures necessary to ensure compliance with applicable 
California Labor Code requirements, including, preparation and implementation of a labor compliance program or 
including any payments to the Department of Industrial Relations under Labor Code Section 1771.3.   

Deliverables: 

 Proof of labor compliance upon request 

Task 1c Reporting  

Prepare supporting information for progress reports detailing work completed during reporting period as outlined in 
Exhibit (G) of this agreement.  

Prepare Draft Project Completion Report and submit to DWR for DWR comment and review no later than 90 days after 
project completion.  Prepare Final Report addressing DWR’s comments. The report shall be prepared and presented in 
accordance with the provision of Exhibit G. 

Deliverables: 

 Draft and Final Project Completion Report 

 

Page 107



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 20 of 48 

 

 

Budget Category (b): Land Purchase/Easement 

Task 2 Land Purchase/Easement  

The proposed service line replacements will take place within public rights-of-way, and no land purchases or easement 
acquisitions will be required. 

Budget Category (c): Planning/Design/Engineering and Environmental Documentation 

Task 3a Feasibility Studies  

LDPCSD has been addressing replacement on an on-going basis and have thus developed methods to quickly address 
replacement as they are reported using a local contractor; constructed in compliance with county encroachment 
permitting requirements. The planning phase of the project will involve identifying and documenting the specific 
locations/parcel numbers where service lines will be replaced as detailed in the (alternative) Project #1, Service Line 
Replacement Project, and establishing the detailed construction phasing schedule. 

Deliverables: 

 Water audit and leak detection reports identifying system areas with the highest water loss 

 Plans of the locations/parcel numbers of the service lines to be replaced 

Task 3b CEQA Documentation  

The implementing agency will prepare a CEQA Notice of Exemption under Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations 
Section 15302, Replacement or Reconstruction (Class 2 Categorical Exemption, which includes 
replacement/reconstruction of existing water pipelines. 

Deliverables: 

 Copy of CEQA Notice of Exemption 

 Copy of Receipt of Filing from the County of Mariposa 

 Copy of Receipt of Filing from the County of Tuolumne 

 No Legal Challenges Letter 

Task 3c Permitting Task status: 0% 

Obtain all necessary federal, state, and local permits. Permits may include:  

 County Encroachment Permit 

Additional permits may be required and will be obtained as necessary. 

Deliverables: 

 Copy of all required permits 

Task 3d Design  

The design will identify targeted locations for service line replacements based on documented leakage rates, using 
existing District construction standards and specifications for pipe material, pavement and trench bedding, confirming 
and documenting the pavement details and depth to pipe for each replacement location type, and compiling this 
information to be included in the bid package. As LDPCSD has been conducting similar work in the past, a single design 
submittal is anticipated. 

Deliverables: 

 Water system leak audit protocol 

 Standard Details 

 100% Design Documents 

 Updated Project Cost Estimate 

Page 108



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 21 of 48 

 

 

Task 3e Project Monitoring Plan  

Develop and submit a Project Monitoring Plan.  Along with the Project Performance Measures Table provided by DWR 
project manager, the Project Monitoring Plan (as described in Exhibit J) will include baseline conditions, a brief 
discussion of monitoring systems to be used, methodology of monitoring, frequency of monitoring, and location of 
monitoring points.  

The project performance monitoring parameters will include: the length of service lines replaced and the estimate of 
Unaccounted-For-Water (UFW). A post-project reduction in the amount of UFW compared to the pre-project baseline 
would indicate that the service line replacement has effectively reduced leakage. 

Deliverables: 

 Project Monitoring Plan 

Budget Category (d): Construction/Implementation 

Task 4a Construction Contracting  

This task includes developing bid documents, preparing advertisement and contract documents, for construction 
contract bidding, conducting pre‐bid meeting, bid opening and evaluation and selection of the contractor, award of 
contract, and issuance of notice to proceed. 

Deliverables: 

 Bid documents 

 Proof of Advertisement 

 Award of contract 

 Notice to proceed 

Task 4b Construction Administration  

This task includes managing contractor submittal review, answering requests for information, and issuing work 
directives. Construction observer duties will include: documenting of pre‐construction conditions, daily construction 
diary, preparing change orders, addressing questions of contractors on site, reviewing/ updating project schedule, 
reviewing contractor log submittals and pay requests, forecasting cash flow, notifying contractor if work is not 
acceptable. 

Deliverables: 

 Notice of Completion 

Task 4c Construction/Implementation Activities  

The project work activities will likely include: 

4c(1): Mobilization and demobilization. 

4c(2): Notifying the affected customers (up to one day of service disruptions may be necessary). 

4c(3): Removing the existing service lines if necessary, using either trenching or trenchless method, depending on 
the specific location.  As many as 245 lines will be replaced at approximately $1,400 per line. 

4c(4): Installing the new pipes and re-connecting them to the corporation stop on the water main and the end users’ 
meter yoke or angle stop valve. 

4c(5): Site restoration including repaving the streets and replacing landscaping. 

Deliverables:  

 Photographic documentation  

Page 109



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 22 of 48 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

BUDGET 

Summary Budget for the Yosemite-Mariposa IRWM Implementation Grant 

Project Title 
Requested 

Grant 

Amount 

Cost Share: 

Non-State 

Fund 

Source 

(Funding 

Match) 

Additional 

Cost Share 
Total Cost 

% 

Funding 

Match 

Project 1 – Grant 

Agreement Administration 
$105,000 $0 $12,700 $117,700 0% 

Project 2 – Water Supply 

Improvement/Groundwater 

Wells* 
$250,000 $0 $262,350 $512,350 0% 

Project 3 – Regional Water 

Use Efficiency Program* 
$175,260 $0 $55,275 $230,535 0% 

Project 4 – Service Line 

Replacement* 
$471,287 $0 $225,000 $696,287 0% 

Total $1,001,547 $0 $555,325 $1,556,872 0% 

          *Denotes DAC Funding Match Waiver 

 

Project 1 – Grant Agreement Administration Budget 

Budget 

Category 

Requested 

Grant 

Amount 

Cost Share: 

Non-State Fund 

Source 

(Funding Match) 

Additional 

Cost Share 
Total 

(a) Direct Project Administration $105,000 _ $12,700 $117,700 

 Total $105,000 _ $12,700 $117,700 

 

  

Page 110



Grant Agreement No. 4600011497 

Page 23 of 48 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

BUDGET (CONT.) 

 

 
Project 2 – Water Supply Improvement/Groundwater Wells 

Budget 

Category 

Requested 

Grant 

Amount 

Cost Share: Non-

State Fund Source 

(Funding 
Match) 

Additional 

Cost 

Share 

Total 

(a) Direct Project Administration $15,000 - - $15,000 

(b) Land Purchase/Easement - - - - 

(c) 
Planning/Design/Engineering/

Environmental Documentation 
- - $262.350 $262,350 

(d) Construction/Implementation $235,000 - - $235,000 

 Total $250,000 - $262,350 $512,350 

 

 
Project 3 – Regional Water Use Efficiency Program Budget  

Budget 

Category 

Requested 

Grant 

Amount 

Cost Share: Non-

State Fund Source 

(Funding 
Match) 

Additional 

Cost 

Share 

Total 

(a) Direct Project Administration $2,500 - - $2,500 

(c) 
Planning/Design/Engineering/

Environmental Documentation 
$2,640 - - $2,640 

(d) Construction/Implementation $170,120 - $55,275 $225,395 

 Total $175,260 - $55,275 $230,535 

 

 
Project 4 – Service Line Replacement Budget  

Budget 

Category 

Requested 

Grant 

Amount 

Cost Share: Non-

State Fund Source 

(Funding 
Match) 

Additional 

Cost 

Share 

Total 

(a) Direct Project Administration $10,000 - _ $10,000 

 
(c) 

Planning/Design/Engineering/

Environmental Documentation 
$33,000 - _ $33,000 

(d) Construction/Implementation $428,287 - $225,000 $653,287 

 Total $471,287 - $225,000 $696,287 

 

Page 111



Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of July 18th, 2016 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
    
5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  

e. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a New Policy on District Financial Reserves 
 

 
Recommended Motion 
Staff Recommends the following motion: 
 
I move to adopt Resolution 2016-XX, a Resolution Approving a New Policy on District 
Financial Reserves  
 
Background  
The Board’s strategic plan includes initiatives intended to raise the visibility and public understanding 
of the District, as well as to effectively and efficiently manage the District finances.  The District has 
the need to accumulate a variety of funding reserves to ensure that we at all times have enough 
money in place to efficiently deliver our services, and charge the appropriate fees and charges to 
existing and new customers to ensure that all ratepayers benefit evenly from the system.   
 
State law provides requirements for the establishment of reserves, and the California Special Districts 
Association produces a Reserve Guideline Manual for the development of comprehensive reserve 
policies and programs. The attached policy is developed in compliance with the law and CSDA 
guidelines.   
 
The reserve policy establishes a minimum and maximum funding amount for most of the reserve 
funds, which can be accumulated over time to meet the District goals.    
  

Page 112



 
 
POLICY TITLE: Reserve Policy 
POLICY NUMBER: (to be established) 
ADOPTED: July 18, 2016 
AMENDED: 
 
 
This statement is intended to provide policy and direction concerning the District’s 
comprehensive reserve policy. 
  
 
BASIC POLICY AND OBJECTIVES 
 
The Lake Don Pedro Community Services District reserve policy is a financial policy guided 
by sound accounting principles of public fund management. The policy establishes several 
reserve funds intended to: 

• Minimize adverse annual budgetary impacts from fluctuations in anticipated and 
unanticipated District expenses  

• Ensure that new water system customers and new development projects pay the 
proportional cost of the value in the existing system and the cost of system 
expansion needed to serve the water demand of these new connections 

• Plan and set aside funding in advance for known future expenditures, to make cash 
available for purchases when necessary and to conduct planning, design, permitting 
and other capital improvement project preparatory actions 

• Ensure that adequate funding is available connection and other mitigation type fees 
to construct improvements related to system capacity  

 
The adequacy of the target reserve year end balance ranges and/or annual contributions 
will be reviewed annually during the budgeting and rate setting process and may be revised 
accordingly as necessary. The following District reserve fund categories are established: 
 
1. Capital Facility Replacement Reserve (Water Service and Administration)  
 

1.1. Purpose: Fees are collected for the future replacement of existing 
facilities and major equipment. 
 
1.2.  Target Balance: The target balance continually fluctuates with the 
addition and replacement of new facilities and equipment. As new facilities and 
equipment are built, acquired or purchased, the target balance will increase in order 
to provide for the ultimate replacement of these facilities at the end of their life-cycle. 
As such, the current target reserve balance is the amount that should be funded at 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Policy and Procedures Manual 

EXHIBIT A

Page 113



the end of each fiscal year according to a replacement reserve study and Capital 
Improvement Plans (CIP), which are reviewed annually. 

 
1.3. Methodology/Rational: The District records depreciation using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of facilities and equipment. The 
fee is collected to replace District facilities and equipment as they reach the end of 
their useful life and also to handle unanticipated repairs during the life-cycle.   
 
1.4. Use of Funds: The funds will be used to replace facilities and equipment 
as necessary to continue reliable and efficient District water services. 
 
1.5. Funding: Annual contributions from user fees are currently based upon 
annual projected requirements in conjunction with the overall budget, replacement 
reserve study and CIP. Interest earnings will be accrued on and added to fund 
balance, using the District's earnings rate on investments.   In addition, the Board of 
Directors may approve the designation of available fund balance as Capital 
Replacement Reserves provided, however, that sufficient Operating Fund balances 
are preserved. 

 
2. Capital Facility Improvement Fee Reserve 
 

2.1.  Purpose: To provide funds for the orderly and timely expansion of the 
District facilities to meet future demand and to maintain and/or improve the District’s 
regulatory compliance and existing level of service. 
 
2.2.  Target Balance: AB1600 does not designate a target reserve balance. A 
Government Code 66000 Compliance Report identifies the proposed capital projects 
necessary to maintain and/or improve services and the amount needed to fund 
those capital projects. In accordance with Government Code 66000, the balance 
shall not exceed the amount specified by that law.  The target funding level will be 
established at an amount adequate to fund the estimated cost of future system 
expansion.   
 
2.3.  Methodology/Rational: Virtually all development that may occur within 
the District requires the use of District facilities, plant and equipment for public 
services. This fee is established to insure the adequacy and reliability of such 
facilities, plant and equipment as development of undeveloped land occurs.  The fee 
is charged when vacant properties established prior to this policy apply for new 
meter installation.  The fee is also charged to new development projects specifically 
to offset and avoid any cost or negative impact to the existing system caused by the 
water demand of future customers. Connection and capacity fees shall be set at the 
level to fund the necessary capacity improvements in a timely manner in advance of 
the new water demand occurring. 
 
2.4.  Use of Funds: The funds generated by the fee will be used to acquire 
and/or construct various capital facilities, both replacement and capacity related for 
the water plant, distribution system and equipment for the provision of water and 
administrative services. 

Page 114



 
2.5 Funding: Annual contributions from connection fees (capacity portion) 
and developer fees will depend upon new construction within the District. 
Additionally, interest earnings will be accrued on and added to fund balance, using 
the District's earnings rate on investments. 

 
3. Water Supply Contingency Reserve Fee 
 

3.1. Purpose: To provide funds for the orderly and timely augmentation of the 
District’s water supply to meet future demands during a major drought event, 
determined based on the water demand of the undeveloped lands, as it develops 
within the District’s existing boundaries. 
 
3.2.  Target Balance: This reserve fund is based on a combination of the 
development of groundwater well systems and the lowering of the existing Lake 
McClure Intake pumps to provide a more reliable water supply system during 
drought, and an alternate water supply when the Lake McClure surface elevation 
drops below the lake’s statutory Minimum Pool.  The amount of the reserve will be 
set at the level detailed in the current Water Supply Assessment Report prepared by 
or under the supervision of the District Engineer. 
 
3.3.  Methodology/Rational: Virtually all development that occurs within the 
District requires a potable water supply, as well as a non-potable supply for fire 
suppression.  The current water supply facilities of the District are adequate to meet 
the human consumption, sanitation and fire protection supply needs of the existing 
development, but additional water supply facilities are required to serve future 
development within the District.  Specifically, this fee applies on an equitable basis 
only to those future connections and developments that require water service, and 
the funds generated from this fee will be used to develop water supply facilities that 
will be capable of meeting the water supply needs of said new connections and 
future development.  This fee is established to insure the adequacy and reliability of 
the District's water supply as development of undeveloped lands occurs, and to 
continue to meet the minimum water supply needs of the community during extreme 
drought conditions.   
 
3.4.  Use of Funds: The funds generated by the fee will be used to pay the 
proportional share of cost of the Lake McClure Intake Pump Extension Project and 
the construction cost of the number of new groundwater wells necessary to serve the 
drought water demand of new system connections and new development projects.   
The fund may also be used to pay for the construction of the transmission and 
treatment facilities determined necessary by the District, and may also include the 
cost of performance of various studies and other miscellaneous management and 
administrative functions.  
 
3.5. Funding: Annual contributions from accumulated connection and 
developer fees will depend upon new construction within the District. Additionally, 
interest earnings will be accrued on and added to fund balance, using the District's 
earnings rate on investments. 

Page 115



 
4. Capital Improvement Connection Fee Reserve (Vacant Parcels) 
 

4.1. Purpose: Fees are collected as a primary source of funds for the 
development of additional water treatment and system capacity to serve the parcels 
existing within the District at the time of adoption of this policy.  The fee is set at a 
level which will defray the costs of providing service to the existing vacant parcels 
including additional water treatment and/or distribution facilities, major trunk and 
transmission pipelines and facilities for pumping when such facilities are needed. 
 
4.2.  Target Balance:  The target balance is set at the amount as determined 
by the District Engineer, necessary to: 
  1) Fund the cost of the value of capacity in the existing water treatment 
and distribution system, as necessary to serve the demand of full buildout of the 
existing system vacant lots; and 
  2) Fund the cost of the installation of additional water treatment plant 
capacity, distribution pumps, water storage tanks, valves, controls and pipelines 
necessary to serve full buildout of the existing system vacant lots; and 
  3) Mitigate the impact of any future land development project, set on a 
project by project basis using established per parcel fees.   
 
4.3. Methodology/Rational: Vacant lots have been paying an annual standby 
assessment since the inception of the system. This funding has been dedicated 
toward general system maintenance and replacement to maintain the system in a 
ready-to-serve capacity. The buildout of the system has occurred much slower than 
ever anticipated, requiring major system renovations and improvements, and the 
vacant lot standby fee has been determined to be wholly inadequate to fund a 
proportional share of these improvements.   
 
A study will be prepared by the District Engineer to identify the cost of major existing 
system renovations attributable to vacant parcels but not paid with standby fees; and 
the cost of future system improvements needed to serve the added capacity of full 
system buildout (all vacant lots connected).  The expense detailed by this study will 
be used to calculate new connection and capacity fees which when charged, will be 
deposited into this reserve account to fund the improvements when needed.   
 
4.4. Use of Funds: The funds will be used to maintain and enhance system 
water treatment and distribution system capacity.  
 
4.5. Funding: This fee is collected in connection fees with each service 
application from a vacant parcel.  In addition, the per new connection value of 
treatment and distribution capacity will be charged to all new land development 
projects and deposited into this account.  Interest earnings will be accrued on and 
added to fund balance, using the District's earnings rate on investments. 

 
5. Rate Stabilization Contingency Fund Reserve (Water Service and 
Administration) 
 

Page 116



5.1. Purpose: To offset revenue shortages due to high levels of water 
conservation, economic hardships and/or unforeseen major expenses. 
 
5.2. Target Balance: The minimum and maximum balances will be periodically 
reviewed by the Board and are to be maintained based upon the level of next year’s 
revenue. The minimum level is no less than 25% of one year’s current operating 
revenue. The maximum limit will be no greater than 75% of next year’s fund 
revenue. 
 
5.3. Methodology/Rational: An economic hardship or unforeseen event could 
cause a loss of revenue for the District. If such an event occurs, the District could 
use these funds to stabilize revenues while adjusting rates if necessary to 
compensate for the fluctuation. 
 
5.4.  Use of Funds: These funds will be used to supplement differences in 
revenue projections resulting from economic hardships and unforeseen events. 
 
5.5. Funding: Initial contributions will be set at up to 50% of any positive fund 
balance at the close of a fiscal year, net of transfers to other capital reserves.  The 
Board will allocate the highest feasible amount annually to this fund considering near 
future operating and capital expense needs.  Additionally, interest earnings will be 
accrued on and added to fund balance, using the District's earnings rate on 
investments. 
 

6. Operating Fund Contingency Reserve (Water and Administration) 
 

6.1. Purpose: To ensure cash resources are available to fund daily 
administration, operations and maintenance of providing and administering water 
services. 
 
6.2.  Target Balance: A minimum of six months of cash to fund District 
expenditures. 
 
6.3.  Methodology/Rational: The District is required to have sufficient cash flow 
to meet the next six months of budgeted District expenditures (Government Code 
Section 53646(b)(3)). The next six months of projected cash revenues can be 
included as a source of cash flow to satisfy this requirement. Revenues in excess of 
reserve contributions and expenditures resulting from expenditure savings or timing 
differences are also reflected in this fund. 
  
6.4. Use of Funds: These funds will be used to pay for expenditures according 
to budget and expenditure authority. 
 
6.5. Funding: Annual contributions will vary, depending upon other reserve 
requirements and current year expenditure requirements. Additionally, interest 
earnings will be accrued on and added to fund balance, using the District's earnings 
rate on investments. 
 

 

Page 117



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING A 
NEW POLICY ON DISTRICT FINANCIAL RESERVES 

 

The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District does 
hereby find and declare as follows: 

 

WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (“District”) is a 
California community services district formed and existing under the provisions of the 
California Community Services District Law, codified at Government Code §§ 61000-
61144, and all acts and laws amendatory thereof or supplementary thereto, and possessing 
all the powers thereof; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors adopts policies to guide the actions of 
management and the District in the conduct of the day to day operations of District 
management and administration; and 

 
WHEREAS, the California Government Code Section 61112 contains provisions for the 

establishment of designated reserve funds for contingencies and capital improvements and 
further requires the annual review of the District’s policy on designated reserves; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that a policy is desirable and necessary to 

identify appropriate capital and contingency financial reserves and to establish their purpose, 
funding amounts and annual financial contributions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the California Special Districts Association has developed and published 

Reserve Policy Guidelines for the purpose of policy development by special districts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has developed draft reserve policy language attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don 

Pedro Community Services District that the General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
file and publish a certified copy of the approved reserve policy contained in Exhibit A as attached 
hereto.  

 
WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of 

the  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District on July 18, 2016, by the following 
vote: 

  

 AYES:  

 

Page 118



NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

_________________________________________ 

Danny Johnson, President, Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 

COUNTY OF MARIPOSA ) 

I, Syndie Marchesiello, the duly appointed and Secretary of the Board of Directors of the 
Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly 
passed and adopted at a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community 
Services District, duly called and held at _____________________________, La Grange, CA 95239, on 
July 18, 2016. 

DATED: July 18, 2016. 

Page 119


	Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
	AGENDA
	1.   CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance:

	Item 3b, GM Report Raw Water Loss Report graph.pdf
	Raw Water Loss Chart
	Raw Water Pumped

	Item 3B, GM Report Vehicle Memo.pdf
	LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	President
	Vice President
	Dan Hankemeir
	Directors
	General Manager
	Office Supervisor
	Operations Supervisor
	www.ldpcsd.org
	MEMO

	Item 3b, GM Report.pdf
	1 Report Overview
	2 Management and Administration
	3 Finance
	4 Infrastructure and Operations

	Item 4, Approval of Consent Agenda Staff Report.pdf
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 4b2, 2016-6-20 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Lake Don Pedro Community Services District
	1.   CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance:


	Item 4c, 2016-6-20 Finance Committee Mtg Minutes.pdf
	Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

	Item 5A, Organizational Chart and Position Details.pdf
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 5B1, Adopt Employee Benefits Staff Report.pdf
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA
	The attached Resolution 2016-XX was drafted to rescind the referenced personnel policies adopted in 2014, and the old external personnel policies, replacing them with the new policy language titled as follows and attached hereto:
	EXHIBIT A
	Lake Don Pedro CSD
	Existing Personnel Policies
	Amended Insurance Provisions
	July 18, 2016


	Item 5B2, Employee Benefits Policy Redline (exhibit A).pdf
	EXHIBIT A
	Lake Don Pedro CSD
	Existing Personnel Policies
	Amended Insurance Provisions
	July 18, 2016
	Section 3.9 Insurance
	Eligibility


	Item 5B4, Employee Benefits Resolution.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___

	Item 5C1, Adopt Personel Policy Revision.pdf
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 5C2, Personnel Policies Redline.pdf
	SECTION 2 – HOURS AND PAY
	Section 2.1 Work Hours and Schedules – Non-Exempt Employees
	Section 2.2 Over-time Pay – Non-Exempt Employees
	Section 2.3  Standby Duty (On-Call Pay)
	Section 2.4 Meal and Rest Periods – Non-Exempt Employees
	Lactation

	Section 2.5 Salary and Merit Reviews
	Section 2.6 Time Clock and Time Cards – Non-Exempt Employees

	SECTION 5 – YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES AS AN EMPLOYEE
	Section 5.15 Cell Phones/Wireless Handheld Device
	Section 5.16  Attendance
	Section 5.17  District Vehicles

	Item 5C, Vehicles Policy to be Deleted.pdf
	Lake Don Pedro Community Services District vehicles, facilities, and equipment are to be used for District business only. Seat belts must be worn at all times by employees driving or riding in District vehicles.


	Item 5C3, Personnel Policy Resolution.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___

	Item 5D1, IRWM Grant.pdf
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA
	Project 2 – Emergency Groundwater Well Project
	Project 3 – Regional Water Use Efficiency Project
	Project 4 – Water Service Line Replacement Project

	Item 5E1, Adopt Financial Reserves Policy.pdf
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 5E3, Reserve Policy Resolution.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___




